2011 a n n u a l r e p o r t

the next level

Our Businesses

ATHLETIC CONNOISSEUR

“SNEAKER CENTRAL”
footlocker.com

Ab o u t t h e C o m pa n y
Foot Locker, Inc. (NYSE: FL) is a leading global retailer of
athletically inspired shoes and apparel. Headquartered
in New York City, the Company operates 3,369 athletic
retail stores in 23 countries in North America, Europe,
Australia, and New Zealand under the brand names Foot
Locker, Lady Foot Locker, Kids Foot Locker, Footaction,
Champs Sports, and CCS.

The Company also operates a direct-to-customers
business offering athletic footwear, apparel, and
equipment through its Internet, mobile, and catalog
channels. In addition to websites for each of the store
banners, such as footlocker.com, the direct-to-customer
business includes Eastbay, a leading destination for the
serious athlete.

Financial Highlights
2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

Sales*			 $ 5,437
$ 5,237
$ 4,854
$ 5,049
$ 5,623
Sales per Gross Square Foot			 $ 352
$ 350
$ 333
$ 360
$ 406
Adjusted Financial Results:**									
Earnings Before Interest and Taxes*			 $ 79
$ 164
$ 138
$ 274
$ 446
EBIT Margin				 1.5%		 3.1%		 2.8%		 5.4%		 7.9%
Net Income*			 $ 62
$ 106
$ 85
$ 173
$ 281
Net Income Margin				 1.1%		 2.0%		 1.8%		 3.4%		 5.0%
Diluted EPS from continuing operations			 $ 0.40
$ 0.68
$ 0.54
$ 1.10
$ 1.82
Return on Invested Capital				 4.1%		 5.4%		 5.3%		 8.3%
11.8%
Cash, cash equivalents and short-term									
investment position, net of debt*			 $ 272
$ 266
$ 451
$ 559
$ 716
* In Millions			
** See page 16 of Form 10-K for the reconciliation of GAAP to non-GAAP adjusted results
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This report contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the federal securities laws. Other than statements of historical facts, all statements which address
activities, events, or developments that the Company anticipates will or may occur in the future, including, but not limited to, such things as future capital expenditures,
expansion, strategic plans, financial objectives, dividend payments, stock repurchases, growth of the Company’s business and operations, including future cash flows,
revenues, and earnings, and other such matters, are forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are based on many assumptions and factors which are
detailed in the Company’s filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission, including the effects of currency fluctuations, customer demand, fashion trends, competitive
market forces, uncertainties related to the effect of competitive products and pricing, customer acceptance of the Company’s merchandise mix and retail locations, the
Company’s reliance on a few key vendors for a majority of its merchandise purchases (including a significant portion from one key vendor), pandemics and similar major
health concerns, unseasonable weather, further deterioration of global financial markets, economic conditions worldwide, further deterioration of business and economic
conditions, any changes in business, political and economic conditions due to the threat of future terrorist activities in the United States or in other parts of the world and
related U.S. military action overseas, the ability of the Company to execute its business and strategic plans effectively with regard to each of its business units, and risks
associated with global product sourcing, including political instability, changes in import regulations, and disruptions to transportation services and distribution. Any changes
in such assumptions or factors could produce significantly different results. The Company undertakes no obligation to update forward-looking statements, whether as a result
of new information, future events, or otherwise.

“ T he strategies our team identified and
began implementing two y ears ago have
elevated our financial performance to
new heights .”

L etter to S hareholders
In 2011, our Company achieved the highest level of
profitability in its history as an athletic footwear and apparel
business. We started out two years ago with a vision --- to be
the leading global retailer of athletically inspired shoes and
apparel --- and we have made tremendous progress towards
achieving that vision.
P rogress T owards F inancial O b j ecti v es
To guide us towards achieving our vision, our leadership
team established several long-term financial objectives at the
beginning of 2010. At the time, we saw them as “stretch”
targets, but just two years later, we are pleased to report that
we not only made substantial progress on each of them, we
have already met several of the goals, as shown below:

Sales (billions)
Sales per Gross Square Foot
Adjusted EBIT Margin
Adjusted Net Income Margin
Return on Invested Capital

2009
$4.9
$333
2.8%
1.8%
5.3%

2011 Objective
$5.6
$6.0
$406
$400
7.9%
8.0%
5.0%
5.0%
11.8%
10.0%

It is clear from these results that the strategies our team
identified and began implementing two years ago have proven
to be the right ones for our business, and solid execution at
every level of the Foot Locker organization has made it possible
to elevate our financial and operational performance to new
heights.
Other key financial accomplishments in 2011 include earning
$1.82 per share, a 68 percent increase over 2010, and the
highest level the Company has achieved since becoming Foot
Locker, Inc. in 2001. This result was driven by a comparable
store sales gain of 9.8 percent, an exceptionally strong result
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coming as it did on top of last year’s gain of 5.8 percent. Our
gross margin rate also improved significantly, to 31.9 percent
from 30.0 percent, while our selling, general, and administrative
expenses also improved to a rate of 22.1 percent, down from
22.5 percent in 2010.
S teps to E nhance S hareholder R eturns
Over the last two years, we have focused on sales growth
and productivity improvements to enable us to invest
in improving our business. Our strong financial position
provides us with the flexibility and confidence to take steps
to enhance shareholder returns, now and in the future. First,
we substantially increased our capital expenditure program
in 2011, to $159 million including key money, in order to take
advantage of the many new, exciting, and, we believe, profitable
opportunities in our business. These investment opportunities
include new store growth, redesigned store formats, enhanced
Internet and mobile platforms, and technology initiatives to
drive efficiency and connect better with our customers across
our brand banners, geographies, and channels.
Second, in February 2012, we announced a 9 percent
increase in our common stock dividend, on top of the previous
year’s 10 percent increase. This latest increase takes effect with
the dividend payment in our first quarter of 2012. Finally, we
also announced a new three-year $400 million share repurchase
program, having repurchased $104 million of our common
stock in 2011. These actions demonstrate our confidence in our
ability to maintain a strong, consistent performance.
U pdated S trategies to A chie v e
the N e x t L e v el of P erformance
Last year, I suggested that 2010 would be seen as an
inflection point for creating sustained increased value for our
shareholders. More than an inflection point, I now believe
2010 actually was a springboard towards a higher level of
performance in 2011 and beyond. I say that because, as strong
as our performance was in 2011, we continue to learn more
about how best to serve our customers, and we have identified
additional opportunities that we believe will drive substantial
improvements in our results in the years ahead.
In light of our progress over the first two years of our longrange plan, our senior leadership team recently completed a
comprehensive review of our strategies and financial objectives.
Our vision remains consistent, as do the essential elements
of our strategy. We have, however, made some meaningful
enhancements. The pages that follow in this year’s annual
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report will highlight the progress we have made in executing
our six original strategies, as well as the key changes to the
strategies that we believe will drive even stronger performance
in the years ahead.
Beginning in 2012, our strategic priorities are to:
• create a clear customer focus, to drive performance in
our core athletic banners
• make our stores and internet sites more exciting,
relevant places to shop and buy
• deliver exceptional growth in high-potential
business segments
• aggressively pursue brand expansion opportunities
• increase the productivity of all of our assets
• build on our industry leading retail team

-6.3%
2009 2010 2011

C onclusion
As I travel around the country and the globe meeting
customers and associates in our stores, and visiting the staff
of our various operating divisions and support locations, I am
constantly impressed with the dedication and engagement of
our associates, guided by our core values, toward executing
our strategies and thereby reaching our key operational and
financial goals. I am also gratified by the positive response and
support of our key partners, including our world-class suppliers,
our landlords, and other organizations that contribute to our
success. The exceptional products and services we are delivering
to our customers are the result of the hard work of our
associates and the elevated collaboration we have achieved with
our partners. It is a privilege to work with such an outstanding
group of people, and I extend my sincere thanks to each of them.
I am also indebted to our Board of Directors, who continue
to provide our management team with guidance and support
as we work to position FootNet
Locker,
Inc. as
an industry leader, Sales Per Sq.
ROIC
Income
Margin
N e wSales
L o n g - T e r m f i n a n c i aEBIT
l O Margin
bjectives
both operationally and financially. This spring, James Preston
Given the progress we have made so far toward our original
will step down as our lead director and Nicholas DiPaolo will take
financial objectives, we have established a new set of long-term
his place. I want to express to Jim my great appreciation for his
financial goals for the period from 2012 through 2016. Overall,
years of service as lead director, and his leadership and counsel
we aspire to consistently be a top quartile performer, with:
to me. I am pleased that Jim will remain on our Board. I am also
• Sales of $7.5 billion
pleased that Nick will be assuming the role of lead director.
• Sales per Gross Square Foot of $500
His extensive business experience and knowledge of our
• Earnings Before Interest and Taxes of 11% of Sales
Company will allow him to add great value as our lead director.
• Net Income of 7% of Sales
Finally, I am extremely grateful to you, our shareholders.
• Return on Invested Capital of 14%
I have met many of you over the last two years, and I truly
• Inventory Turnover of 3+ times
appreciate your ongoing confidence and encouragement as we
execute our strategies to achieve our vision.
As I noted, two years ago we believed that the objectives we
I am convinced that all of the associates at Foot Locker, Inc.
established then represented “stretch” goals, since some of the
look forward to putting into practice the updated strategies
goals were set at levels beyond what we had achieved in the
and initiatives that we have outlined in this annual report, and
past. All of these new goals represent targets well beyond what
continuing on our path to being the leading global retailer of
we have ever achieved before as an athletic company --- we
believe this will be the next level of performance in the evolution athletically inspired shoes and apparel.
of our Company. Driven by the initiatives you will see described
on the coming pages, we believe we are well-positioned to
achieve these targets. The success that we anticipate, though,
will not come in a straight line. We will remain focused, and
navigate diligently through any setbacks, whether these are the
Ken C. Hicks
result of challenges in the external environment or due to some
Chairman of the Board,
element of our own execution. We believe that we have the
President and Chief Executive Officer
resources --- our strong team, our core values, our finances,
our market position, and the strong partnerships we have
formed with our leading vendors --- to become and remain a top
performer, not just in the athletic industry, but in all of retail.
2011
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our vision
Be the leading global retailer of athletically inspired shoes and apparel.

core values
integrit y
act honestly, ethically
and honorably

leadership
respect, inspire, develop
and empower

e x c e ll e n c e
strive to be the best
in everything we do

service
satisfy our customers
every time

team work
collaborate, trust,
support, commit

i n n o vat i o n
be a student of the business to
initiate and foster new ideas

communit y
embrace diversity; act responsibly for our
customers, associates, investors and communities
5

D riving P erformance
• create a clear customer focus, to drive performance in our core athletic banners
Over the last two years, we have taken large strides
toward clearly defining our brand banners in the United
States. We significantly increased the product differentiation
between our banners and, within individual banners,
broadened our product mix. While simultaneously
strengthening our leadership position in basketball, we
added strong presentations of running and casual footwear,
as well as apparel. The category with the biggest overall
gain was running, with several vendor partners delivering
new technologies and updated styles. Innovations by
our brand partners in silhouettes, fabrication, colors, and
design are helping to sustain customer excitement and
interest across multiple product categories. In fact, our
vendor partnerships have never been stronger, and we are
committed to winning in the marketplace together.
7

To capitalize on these steps in 2011, we produced strong
marketing campaigns that told our brand stories. The sales
gains, solid traffic counts, and higher conversion rates we
experienced across most of our banners were indicative of
the success of these marketing efforts.
Looking forward, our goals are to:
• amplify our brand banners, to be the leader in each of our
segments
• become a power player in each of our product categories
• build a highly-compelling, locally-relevant assortment
• target customers with innovative, 360 degree marketing,
across all our customer touch points

EPS
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510 Basis Point Improvement

ROIC
By effectively differentiating
our brand

banners and expanding our product assortments, especially in apparel and running shoes,
we elevated
11.8%
our earnings before interest and taxes to 7.9 percent of sales in 2011.

8.3%

8
5.3%

$1 Billion Club

Champs Sports became the third member of our $1 billion club by

achieving that level of sales in 2011, joining Foot Locker in the U.S. and Foot Locker Europe.
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EXCITING PLACES TO SHOP
• make our stores and internet sites more exciting, relevant places to shop and buy
We have significantly elevated the look and feel of our
stores. First, in many of our stores, we have realigned
the presentation of product along the shoe walls in order
to increase productivity, and we integrated our apparel
assortments with the footwear in order to tell compelling
functionality and color stories. We are testing exciting
new store formats in Champs Sports and Europe, and are
designing a new format for Foot Locker in the United States.
We have also introduced new selling skills training, focused
on customer needs, in stores around the world.
Second, we have upgraded the features and functionality
of our Internet and mobile sites, significantly improving the
cross-channel experience. Our customers are increasingly
comfortable switching back and forth between our stores
and on-line in their relationship with us, and we continue
to innovate in order to deepen our connection with our
customers.
Our Eastbay site was recognized by Internet Retailer
Magazine as the best mobile-optimized site of the Top 100
Internet retailers, and 8thBridge ranked Eastbay sixth in
Social Commerce IQ among top Internet retailers, giving us

a “Genius” rating. We have driven increased traffic on our
websites by adding customer engagement features such as
the Eastbay Athlete Resource Center. ARC is a destination for
athletes to compare themselves to elite competitors and see
suggested drills and exercises to close the gap.
We have introduced Striperpedia, an on-line collection
of knowledge from our associates to help customers
understand more about the athletic footwear and apparel
we offer, and to share our passion for sneakers. We also
launched Sneakerpedia, an on-line community powered
by Foot Locker dedicated to the sneaker enthusiast. This
innovative effort won the Gold Lion Award in the Cyber
category at the 2011 Cannes Festival of Creativity.
Our primary goals in this area are to:
• tell powerful product stories and clearly communicate
with our customers across channels
• create dynamic, productive, engaging store environments
• implement programs to improve customer service and
sales productivity
• increase customer engagement, with compelling digital
and store customer experiences
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deliver exceptional growth
• deliver exceptional growth in high-potential business segments
A substantial portion of the growth that we have
experienced over the last two years has been the result
of improving the Company’s core businesses. We drove
sales increases and profit margins in footwear, apparel, and
accessories. Within footwear, we posted top line gains in
men’s, women’s, and kids’. We also demonstrated strength
in all major categories of footwear: basketball, running,
and casual. Finally, we had gains in both the domestic and
international markets, as well as on-line.
We have paid particular attention to developing a
compelling apparel assortment, and so far the results have
been encouraging. We partnered with several key brands to
deliver improved apparel product, which produced double
digit sales gains in the United States. We also created our
11

own Actra brand for our women’s business; elevated the
Sneaker Freak label in Europe; launched Champs Sports
Gear; and introduced EVAPOR (a proprietary moisture
management technology) and other enhanced features in
our private label offerings, as we shift away from commodity
items.
In the future, we will focus additional energy and resources
on our high-potential families of business in order to:
• develop a leadership position in the Athletic Apparel
business
• expand Kids’ and Women’s to play more significant roles
in all of our businesses
• build a meaningful Team Services and Sales business

Net Income Margin

Net Income Margin

EPS
320 Basis Point Increase
in Net Income Margin

5.0%
$1.81

We delivered strong sales and margin improvements

3.4%

across all of our product categories — footwear, $1.10
apparel, and accessories. These improvements came in
all channels, including in-store and on-line. The
$0.54 gains

1.8%

were also worldwide, as every region in which we
operate — North America, Europe, and Asia/Pacific —
delivered higher profits.

2009 2010 2011

Sales Per Sq. Ft.

2009 2010 2011

Sales
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E X PA N S I O N O P P O R T U N I T I E S
• aggressively pursue brand expansion opportunities
Through our cross-channel efforts, we have driven growth
in our store banner.com sales well into the double digits,
while at the same time leveraging our industry-leading
Eastbay direct-to-customer business. On the ground, we
accelerated our new store openings in Europe, including our
first stores in the Czech Republic and Poland; we expanded
our successful House of Hoops shops to a total of 52; and
we successfully applied learnings from our RUN concept to
elevate our running assortments in all Foot Locker stores.
These and many other efforts combined to produce total
sales growth of 11.4 percent in 2011, to $5.6 billion.
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Looking ahead, the primary initiatives to capture brand
expansion opportunities are to:
• drive digital sales and marketing for all brick-and-mortar
banners and Eastbay
• expand our presence in Europe
• invest strategically in new country opportunities
• grow potentially significant businesses, such as House of
Hoops and CCS
• innovate by testing new formats and merchandise ideas

8
2011
7
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Sales Gain The increase was driven
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EBIT Margin
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I ncrease P roductivit y
• increase the productivity of all of our assets
We have achieved meaningful improvements in several
measures of productivity in 2011. First, we surpassed our
sales per gross square foot target of $400, achieving sales of
$406 per square foot. Similarly, our sales per payroll hour
have grown over 15 percent since 2009.
Second, we continued our long-standing history of
disciplined expense management by lowering our selling,
general and administrative expense rate from 22.5 percent
of sales to 22.1 percent. This contributed significantly to a
strong profit “flow through.” In other words, we are taking
to the bottom line a high proportion of every extra sales
dollar we earn.
Third, we achieved these sales gains while holding
inventory almost flat. Our inventory is very fresh, allowing
15

us to flow in new product assortments frequently in order to
meet customer preferences. Improving our inventory turns
is a key focus for our entire team.
Combined, these achievements produced a return on
invested capital (ROIC) in 2011 of 11.8 percent, up from just
5.3 percent in 2009 and above our objective of 10 percent.
To elevate productivity even further, we intend to:
•
•
•
•
•

drive space planning and performance
increase selling staff productivity and service
improve our inventory turns and merchandise flow
further increase ROIC
invest in technology upgrades to increase our
effectiveness

EPS

$1.10

$0.54

2009 2010

SalesPer
Per Sq.
Sq. Ft.
Sales
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$360
$333
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L eading R etail T eam
• build on our industry leading retail team
Our associates are key to our strategy; therefore,
attracting, developing, and retaining the industry’s leading
retail team is critical to our success. Every day, our
associates work on the sales floors in our stores, on the
loading docks at distribution centers, and at headquarters
offices around the world. It is through their efforts that Foot
Locker, Inc. will be the global leading retailer of athletically
inspired shoes and apparel.
We have revamped associate selling skills training,
focused on meeting customer needs. We have upgraded
key talent management processes, such as executive
development and succession planning, in both field and

2011
headquarters organizations. Above all, we have developed,
communicated, and reinforced our Company’s core values.
2010

In order to build on our progress, our goals for 2012 and
beyond are to:
2009
• attract, develop, and retain the best people in retail
• cultivate a more sales-oriented and customer-centric
culture and skill set
• increase diversity at all levels, to better reflect our
customer base
• recognize and reinforce associate behaviors that support
our core values
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C ommunit y I nvolvement
The core values of our Company extend beyond the
workplace. Just as we are elevating our strategic goals and
financial objectives, we are also elevating our efforts to serve
the communities in which we work and live.
A prime example of such efforts is the Foot Locker Scholar
Athletes program that the Foot Locker Foundation, Inc.
launched in 2011. This program provides 20 winners with
$20,000 each in scholarship funding for college. The program
also awards three Company associates with $5,000 in college
scholarship funding.
In addition, we sponsored the Champs Sports Bowl for
the eighth year in a row in December. This sponsorship also
provides college funding to talented scholar-athletes.

SCHOLAR ATHLETES
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Through our annual “On Our Feet” event, the Foot Locker
Foundation continued to be a major source of scholarship
funds for the United Negro College Fund. In addition to
UNCF, we are long-standing major supporters of several
other worthy organizations, including the American Cancer
Society, Fred Jordan Mission, and the Two Ten Footwear
Foundation.
In 2012, the Company is also introducing a personal day
for associates to participate in a volunteer activity of his or
her choice. As a company, we take pride in adding value
within our communities, and will build on a strong tradition
of service through active support of worthwhile causes
and organizations, focused primarily on youth sports and
education, that are meaningful to our customers, associates,
suppliers, and shareholders.
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PART I
Item 1.

Business

General
Foot Locker, Inc., incorporated under the laws of the State of New York in 1989, is a leading global retailer
of athletically inspired shoes and apparel, operating 3,369 primarily mall-based stores in the United States,
Canada, Europe, Australia, and New Zealand as of January 28, 2012. Foot Locker, Inc. and its subsidiaries
hereafter are referred to as the ‘‘Registrant,’’ ‘‘Company,’’ ‘‘we,’’ ‘‘our,’’ or ‘‘us.’’ Information regarding the
business is contained under the ‘‘Business Overview’’ section in ‘‘Item 7. Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.’’
The Company maintains a website on the Internet at www.footlocker-inc.com. The Company’s filings with
the Securities and Exchange Commission, including its annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on
Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and all amendments to those reports are available free of charge
through this website as soon as reasonably practicable after they are filed with or furnished to the SEC by
clicking on the ‘‘SEC Filings’’ link. The Corporate Governance section of the Company’s corporate website
contains the Company’s Corporate Governance Guidelines, Committee Charters, and the Company’s Code
of Business Conduct for directors, officers and employees, including the Chief Executive Officer,
Chief Financial Officer, and Chief Accounting Officer. Copies of these documents may also be obtained free
of charge upon written request to the Company’s Corporate Secretary at 112 West 34th Street, New York,
N.Y. 10120. The Company intends to promptly disclose amendments to the Code of Business Conduct and
waivers of the Code for directors and executive officers on the Corporate Governance section of the
Company’s corporate website.
Information Regarding Business Segments and Geographic Areas
The financial information concerning business segments, divisions and geographic areas is contained
under the ‘‘Business Overview’’ and ‘‘Segment Information’’ sections in ‘‘Item 7. Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.’’ Information regarding sales, operating
results and identifiable assets of the Company by business segment and by geographic area is
contained under the Segment Information note in ‘‘Item 8. Consolidated Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data.’’
The service marks and trademarks appearing in this report (except for Nike, Inc. and Alshaya Trading Co.
W.L.L.) are owned by Foot Locker, Inc. or its subsidiaries.
Employees
The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries had 13,080 full-time and 26,077 part-time employees at
January 28, 2012. The Company considers employee relations to be satisfactory.
Competition
Financial information concerning competition is contained under the ‘‘Business Risk’’ section in the
Financial Instruments and Risk Management note in ‘‘Item 8. Consolidated Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data.’’
Merchandise Purchases
Financial information concerning merchandise purchases is contained under the ‘‘Liquidity’’ section in
‘‘Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations’’ and
under the ‘‘Business Risk’’ section in the Financial Instruments and Risk Management note in ‘‘Item 8.
Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.’’
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Item 1A.

Risk Factors

The statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K (‘‘Annual Report’’) that are not historical
facts, including, but not limited to, statements regarding our expected financial position, business and
financing plans found in ‘‘Item 1. Business’’ and ‘‘Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations,’’ constitute ‘‘forward-looking statements’’ within the
meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Please also see ‘‘Disclosure Regarding
Forward-Looking Statements.’’ Our actual results may differ materially due to the risks and uncertainties
discussed in this Annual Report, including those discussed below. Additional risks and uncertainties that
we do not presently know about or that we currently consider to be insignificant may also affect our
business operations and financial performance.
Our inability to implement our strategic long range plan may have an adverse affect on our future
results.
Our ability to successfully implement and execute our long range plan is dependent on many factors. Our
strategies may require significant capital investment and management attention, which may result in the
diversion of these resources from our core business and other business issues and opportunities.
Additionally, any new initiative is subject to certain risks including customer acceptance, competition,
product differentiation, and the ability to attract and retain qualified personnel. If we cannot successfully
execute our strategic growth initiatives or if the long range plan does not adequately address the
challenges or opportunities we face, our financial condition and results of operations may be adversely
affected.
The businesses in which we operate are highly competitive.
The retail athletic footwear and apparel business is highly competitive with relatively low barriers to
entry. Our athletic footwear and apparel operations compete primarily with athletic footwear specialty
stores, sporting goods stores and superstores, department stores, discount stores, traditional shoe stores,
and mass merchandisers, many of which are units of national or regional chains that have significant
financial and marketing resources. The principal competitive factors in our markets are price, quality,
selection of merchandise, reputation, store location, advertising, and customer service. Our success also
depends on our ability to differentiate ourselves from our competitors with respect to shopping
convenience, a quality assortment of available merchandise and superior customer service. We cannot
assure you that we will continue to be able to compete successfully against existing or future competitors.
Our expansion into markets served by our competitors and entry of new competitors or expansion of
existing competitors into our markets could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition, and results of operations. Although we sell merchandise via the Internet, a significant shift in
customer buying patterns to purchasing athletic footwear, athletic apparel, and sporting goods via the
Internet could have a material adverse effect on our business results.
In addition, all of our significant vendors distribute products directly through the Internet and others may
follow. Some vendors operate retail stores and some have indicated that further retail stores will open.
Should this continue to occur, and if our customers decide to purchase directly from our vendors, it could
have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations.
The industry in which we operate is dependent upon fashion trends, customer preferences, and
other fashion-related factors.
The athletic footwear and apparel industry is subject to changing fashion trends and customer preferences.
We cannot guarantee that our merchandise selection will accurately reflect customer preferences when it
is offered for sale or that we will be able to identify and respond quickly to fashion changes, particularly
given the long lead times for ordering much of our merchandise from vendors. A substantial portion of our
highest margin sales are to young males (ages 12 − 25), many of whom we believe purchase athletic
footwear and athletic and licensed apparel as a fashion statement and are frequent purchasers. Any shift in
fashion trends that would make athletic footwear or licensed apparel less attractive to these customers
could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations.
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If we do not successfully manage our inventory levels, our operating results will be adversely
affected.
We must maintain sufficient inventory levels to operate our business successfully. However, we also must
guard against accumulating excess inventory. For example, we order the bulk of our athletic footwear four
to six months prior to delivery to our stores. If we fail to anticipate accurately either the market for the
merchandise in our stores or our customers’ purchasing habits, we may be forced to rely on markdowns or
promotional sales to dispose of excess or slow moving inventory, which could have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations.
A change in the relationship with any of our key vendors or the unavailability of our key products
at competitive prices could affect our financial health.
Our business is dependent to a significant degree upon our ability to obtain exclusive product and the
ability to purchase brand-name merchandise at competitive prices. In addition, our vendors provide
volume discounts, cooperative advertising, and markdown allowances, as well as the ability to negotiate
returns of excess or unneeded merchandise. We cannot be certain that such assistance from our vendors
will continue in the future.
The Company purchased approximately 82 percent of its merchandise in 2011 from its top five vendors
and expects to continue to obtain a significant percentage of its athletic product from these vendors in
future periods. Approximately 61 percent was purchased from one vendor — Nike, Inc. (‘‘Nike’’). Each of
our operating divisions is highly dependent on Nike; they individually purchase 45 to 77 percent of their
merchandise from Nike. Merchandise that is high profile and in high demand is allocated by our vendors
based upon their internal criteria. Although we have generally been able to purchase sufficient quantities
of this merchandise in the past, we cannot be certain that our vendors will continue to allocate sufficient
amounts of such merchandise to us in the future. Our inability to obtain merchandise in a timely manner
from major suppliers (particularly Nike) as a result of business decisions by our suppliers or any
disruption in the supply chain could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition,
and results of operations. Because of our strong dependence on Nike, any adverse development in Nike’s
reputation, financial condition or results of operations or the inability of Nike to develop and manufacture
products that appeal to our target customers could also have an adverse effect on our business, financial
condition, and results of operations. We cannot be certain that we will be able to acquire merchandise at
competitive prices or on competitive terms in the future.
These risks could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of
operations.
We depend on mall traffic and our ability to identify suitable store locations.
Our stores in the United States and Canada are located primarily in enclosed regional and neighborhood
malls. Our sales are dependent, in part, on the volume of mall traffic. Mall traffic may be adversely affected
by, among other things, economic downturns, the closing of anchor department stores, and a decline in the
popularity of mall shopping among our target customers. Further, any terrorist act, natural disaster, or
public health concern that decreases the level of mall traffic, or that affects our ability to open and operate
stores in affected areas, could have a material adverse effect on our business.
To take advantage of customer traffic and the shopping preferences of our customers, we need to maintain
or acquire stores in desirable locations such as in regional and neighborhood malls anchored by major
department stores. We cannot be certain that desirable mall locations will continue to be available. Some
traditional enclosed malls are experiencing significantly lower levels of customer traffic, driven by the
overall poor economic conditions, as well as the closure of certain mall anchor tenants.
Several large landlords dominate the ownership of prime malls, particularly in the United States, and
because of our dependence upon these landlords for a substantial number of our locations, any significant
erosion of their financial condition or our relationships with these landlords would negatively affect our
ability to obtain and retain store locations. Additionally, further landlord consolidation may negatively
affect our ability to negotiate favorable lease terms.
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The effects of natural disasters, terrorism, acts of war, and public health issues may adversely
affect our business.
Natural disasters, including earthquakes, hurricanes, floods, and tornados may affect store and distribution
center operations. In addition, acts of terrorism, acts of war, and military action both in the United States
and abroad can have a significant effect on economic conditions and may negatively affect our ability to
purchase merchandise from vendors for sale to our customers. Public health issues, such as flu or other
pandemics, whether occurring in the United States or abroad, could disrupt our operations and result in a
significant part of our workforce being unable to operate or maintain our infrastructure or perform other
tasks necessary to conduct our business. Additionally, public health issues may disrupt the operations of
our suppliers, our operations, our customers, or have an adverse effect on customer demand. We may be
required to suspend operations in some or all of our locations, which could have a material adverse effect
on our business, financial condition, and results of operations. Any significant declines in public safety or
uncertainties regarding future economic prospects that affect customer spending habits could have a
material adverse effect on customer purchases of our products.
We may experience fluctuations in and cyclicality of our comparable-store sales results.
Our comparable-store sales have fluctuated significantly in the past, on both an annual and a quarterly
basis, and we expect them to continue to fluctuate in the future. A variety of factors affect our
comparable-store sales results, including, among others, fashion trends, the highly competitive retail store
sales environment, economic conditions, timing of promotional events, changes in our merchandise mix,
calendar shifts of holiday periods, and weather conditions. Many of our products, particularly high-end
athletic footwear and licensed apparel, represent discretionary purchases. Accordingly, customer demand
for these products could decline in a recession or if our customers develop other priorities for their
discretionary spending. These risks could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition, and results of operations.
Our operations may be adversely affected by economic or political conditions in other countries.
A significant portion of our sales and operating income for 2011 was attributable to our operations in
Europe, Canada, New Zealand, and Australia. As a result, our business is subject to the risks associated with
doing business outside of the United States such as foreign customer preferences, political unrest,
disruptions or delays in shipments, changes in economic conditions in countries in which we operate, and
labor and employment practices in non-U.S. jurisdictions that may differ significantly from those that
prevail in the United States. Although we enter into forward foreign exchange contracts and option
contracts to reduce the effect of foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations, our operations may be
adversely affected by significant changes in the value of the U.S. dollar as it relates to certain foreign
currencies.
In addition, because we and our suppliers have a substantial amount of our products manufactured in

Our reliance on key management, store and field associates.
Future performance will depend upon our ability to attract, retain, and motivate our executive and senior
management team, as well as store personnel and field management. Our success depends to a significant
extent both upon the continued services of our current executive and senior management team, as well as
our ability to attract, hire, motivate, and retain additional qualified management in the future. Competition
for key executives in the retail industry is intense, and our operations could be adversely affected if we
cannot attract and retain qualified associates. Many of the store and field associates are in entry level or
part-time positions with historically high rates of turnover. Our ability to meet our labor needs while
controlling costs is subject to external factors such as unemployment levels, prevailing wage rates,
minimum wage legislation, and changing demographics. If we are unable to attract and retain quality
associates, our ability to meet our growth goals or to sustain expected levels of profitability may be
compromised. In addition, a large number of our retail employees are paid the prevailing minimum wage,
which if increased would negatively affect our profitability.
We face risks arising from recent activity by the National Labor Relations Board in the
United States.
There have been recent decisions, and administrative regulations issued, by the National Labor Relations
Board that, if not successfully challenged, would significantly change the nature of how union elections are
to be conducted in the United States. These recent decisions and regulations could impose more labor
relations requirements and union activity on our business conducted in the United States, thereby
potentially increasing our costs, and could have a material adverse effect on our overall competitive
position.
Health care reform could adversely affect our business.
In 2010, Congress enacted comprehensive health care reform legislation which, among other things,
includes guaranteed coverage requirements, eliminates pre-existing condition exclusions and annual and
lifetime maximum limits, restricts the extent to which policies can be rescinded, and imposes new and
significant taxes on health insurers and health care benefits. Due to the breadth and complexity of the
health reform legislation, the current lack of implementing regulations and interpretive guidance, and the
phased-in nature of the implementation, it is difficult to predict the overall effect of the statute and related
regulations on our business over the coming years. Possible adverse effects of the health reform legislation
include increased costs, exposure to expanded liability and requirements for us to revise ways in which we
conduct business.
Legislative or regulatory initiatives related to global warming/climate change concerns may
negatively affect our business.
There has been an increasing focus and significant debate on global climate change recently, including
increased attention from regulatory agencies and legislative bodies globally. This increased focus may lead
to new initiatives directed at regulating an as-yet unspecified array of environmental matters. Legislative,
regulatory or other efforts in the United States to combat climate change could result in future increases in
taxes or in the cost of transportation and utilities, which could decrease our operating profits and could
necessitate future additional investments in facilities and equipment. We are unable to predict the
potential effects that any such future environmental initiatives may have on our business.
We may be adversely affected by regulatory and litigation developments.
We are exposed to the risk that federal or state legislation may negatively impact our operations. Changes
in federal or state wage requirements, employee rights, health care, social welfare or entitlement programs
such as health insurance, paid leave programs, or other changes in workplace regulation could increase
our cost of doing business or otherwise adversely affect our operations. Additionally, we are regularly
involved in various litigation matters, including class actions and patent infringement claims, which arise
in the ordinary course of our business. Litigation or regulatory developments could adversely affect our
business operations and financial performance.
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Failure to fully comply with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 could negatively affect
our business, the price of our common stock and market confidence in our reported financial
information.
We continue to document, test, and monitor our internal controls over financial reporting in order to
satisfy all of the requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002; however we cannot be
assured that our disclosure controls and procedures and our internal controls over financial reporting will
prove to be completely adequate in the future. Failure to fully comply with Section 404 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 could negatively affect our business, the price of our common stock, and
market confidence in our reported financial information.
Item 1B.

Unresolved Staff Comments

None.
Item 2.

Properties

The properties of the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries consist of land, leased stores,
administrative facilities, and distribution centers. Gross square footage and total selling area for the
Athletic Stores segment at the end of 2011 were approximately 12.45 and 7.38 million square feet,
respectively. These properties, which are primarily leased, are located in the United States, Canada, various
European countries, Australia, and New Zealand.
The Company currently operates four distribution centers, of which two are owned and two are leased,
occupying an aggregate of 2.4 million square feet. Three of the four distribution centers are located in the
United States and one is in the Netherlands.
Item 3.

Legal Proceedings

Information regarding the Company’s legal proceedings is contained in the Legal Proceedings note under
‘‘Item 8. Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.’’
Item 4.

Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.
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Executive Officers of the Registrant
Information with respect to Executive Officers of the Company, as of March 26, 2012, is set forth below:
Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer
Executive Vice President and Group President — Retail Stores
Executive Vice President — Operations Support
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary
Senior Vice President — Real Estate

Ken C. Hicks
Richard A. Johnson
Robert W. McHugh
Lauren B. Peters
Gary M. Bahler
Jeffrey L. Berk

Senior Vice President and Chief Information Officer
Senior Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer

Peter D. Brown
Giovanna Cipriano

Senior Vice President — Human Resources
Vice President, Treasurer and Investor Relations

Laurie J. Petrucci
John A. Maurer

Ken C. Hicks, age 59, has served as Chairman of the Board since January 31, 2010 and President and Chief
Executive Officer since August 17, 2009. Mr. Hicks served as President and Chief Merchandising Officer of
J.C. Penney Company, Inc. (‘‘JC Penney’’) from 2005 through 2009. He was President and Chief Operating
Officer of Stores and Merchandise Operations of JC Penney from 2002 through 2004, and he served as
President of Payless ShoeSource, Inc. from 1999 to 2002. Mr. Hicks is also a director of Avery Dennison
Corporation.
Richard A. Johnson, age 54, has served as Executive Vice President and Group President — Retail Stores
since July 2011. He served as President and Chief Executive Officer of Foot Locker U.S., Lady Foot Locker,
Kids Foot Locker, and Footaction from January 2010 to July 2011; President and Chief Executive Officer of
Foot Locker Europe from August 2007 to January 2010; and President and Chief Executive Officer of
Footlocker.com/Eastbay from April 2003 to August 2007.
Robert W. McHugh, age 53, has served as Executive Vice President — Operations Support since July 2011.
He served as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer from May 2009 to July 2011; and Senior
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer from November 2005 through April 2009.
Lauren B. Peters, age 50, has served as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer since July 2011.
She served as Senior Vice President — Strategic Planning from April 2002 to July 2011.
Gary M. Bahler, age 60, has served as Senior Vice President since August 1998, General Counsel since
February 1993 and Secretary since February 1990.
Jeffrey L. Berk, age 56, has served as Senior Vice President — Real Estate since February 2000.
Peter D. Brown, age 57, has served as Senior Vice President and Chief Information Officer since
February 2011. He served as Senior Vice President, Chief Information Officer and Investor Relations from
September 2006 to February 2011; and as Vice President — Investor Relations and Treasurer from
October 2001 to September 2006.
Giovanna Cipriano, age 42, has served as Senior Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer since
May 2009. Ms. Cipriano served as Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer from November 2005
through April 2009.
Laurie J. Petrucci, age 53, has served as Senior Vice President — Human Resources since May 2001.
John A. Maurer, age 52, has served as Vice President, Treasurer and Investor Relations since
February 2011. Mr. Maurer served as Vice President and Treasurer from September 2006 to
February 2011. He served as Divisional Vice President and Assistant Treasurer from April 2006 to
September 2006.
There are no family relationships among the executive officers or directors of the Company.
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PART II
Item 5.

Market for the Company’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer
Purchases of Equity Securities

Foot Locker, Inc. common stock (ticker symbol ‘‘FL’’) is listed on The New York Stock Exchange as
well as on the Börse Stuttgart stock exchange in Germany. In addition, the stock is traded on the
Cincinnati stock exchange. At January 28, 2012, the Company had 18,209 shareholders of record owning
151,619,112 common shares.
The following table provides, for the period indicated, the intra-day high and low sales prices for the
Company’s common stock:
2011

1st Quarter
2nd Quarter
3rd Quarter
4th Quarter

2010

High

Low

High

Low

$22.03
25.50
23.02
26.82

$17.21
21.00
16.66
20.82

$16.76
15.79
16.09
20.08

$11.30
12.27
11.59
15.63

During each of the quarters of 2011 the Company declared dividends of $0.165 per share. The Board of
Directors reviews the dividend policy and rate, taking into consideration the overall financial and strategic
outlook for our earnings, liquidity and cash flow projections, as well as competitive factors. On
February 14, 2012, the Board of Directors declared a quarterly dividend of $0.18 per share to be paid on
April 27, 2012. This dividend represents a 9 percent increase over the Company’s previous quarterly
per share amount.
The following table is a summary of our fourth quarter share repurchases:

Date Purchased

Oct. 30, 2011 − Nov. 26, 2011
Nov. 27, 2011 − Dec. 31, 2011
Jan. 1, 2012 − Jan. 28, 2012

(1)
(2)

Total
Number of
Shares
Purchased(1)

Average
Price Paid
per Share(1)

Total Number of
Shares
Purchased as
Part of Publicly
Announced
Program(2)

—
294,401
—
294,401

—
$23.84
—
$23.84

—
289,100
—
289,100

Approximate
Dollar Value of
Shares that may
yet be Purchased
Under the
Program(2)

$103,463,547
$ 96,575,360
$ 96,575,360
$ 96,575,360

These columns also reflect shares purchased in connection with stock swaps. The calculation of the average price paid per share
includes all fees, commissions, and other costs associated with the repurchase of such shares.
On February 16, 2010, the Company’s Board of Directors approved the extension of the Company’s 2007 common share
repurchase program for an additional three years in the amount of $250 million. Through January 28, 2012, 8.1 million shares
of common stock were purchased under this program, for an aggregate purchase price of $153 million.

On February 14, 2012, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a new 3-year, $400 million share
repurchase program extending through January 2015, replacing the previous $250 million program which
terminated on that date.
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Performance Graph
The following graph compares the cumulative five-year total return to shareholders on Foot Locker, Inc.’s
common stock relative to the total returns of the S&P 400 Retailing Index and the Russell 2000 Index.
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Russell 2000

The Company has previously used the Russell 2000 Index in its performance graph. However, due to the
increasing size of the Company’s market capitalization it was determined that the Russell Midcap Index is a
more appropriate benchmark as the median market capitalization is the closest in the Russell family of
indices to the Company’s. The next graph compares the cumulative five-year total return to shareholders
on Foot Locker, Inc.’s common stock relative to the total returns of the S&P 400 Retailing Index and
the Russell Midcap Index. It is the Company’s intention to use the Russell Midcap Index for future
performance graphs.
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Item 6.

Selected Financial Data
FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY OF SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The selected financial data below should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial
Statements and the Notes thereto and other information contained elsewhere in this report.
($ in millions, except per share amounts)

Summary of Continuing Operations
Sales
Gross margin
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Impairment and other charges
Depreciation and amortization
Interest expense, net
Other income
Income (loss) from continuing operations, after-tax
Per Common Share Data
Basic earnings
Diluted earnings
Common stock dividends declared per share
Weighted-average Common Shares Outstanding
Basic earnings
Diluted earnings
Financial Condition
Cash, cash equivalents, and short-term investments
Merchandise inventories
Property and equipment, net
Total assets
Long-term debt
Total shareholders’ equity
Financial Ratios
Sales per average gross square foot(1)
Earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT)(2)
EBIT margin(2)
Net income margin(2)
Return on assets (ROA)
Net debt capitalization percent(3)
Current ratio
Other Data
Capital expenditures
Number of stores at year end
Total selling square footage at year end (in millions)
Total gross square footage at year end (in millions)
(1)
(2)
(3)

2011

2010

2009

2008

2007

$5,623
1,796
1,244
5
110
6
(4)
278

5,049
1,516
1,138
10
106
9
(4)
169

4,854
1,332
1,099
41
112
10
(3)
47

5,237
1,460
1,174
259
130
5
(8)
(79)

5,437
1,420
1,176
128
166
1
(1)
43

1.81
1.80
0.66

1.08
1.07
0.60

0.30
0.30
0.60

(0.52)
(0.52)
0.60

0.29
0.28
0.50

153.0
154.4

155.7
156.7

156.0
156.3

154.0
154.0

154.0
155.6

$ 851
1,069
427
3,050
135
2,110

696
1,059
386
2,896
137
2,025

589
1,037
387
2,816
138
1,948

408
1,120
432
2,877
142
1,924

493
1,281
521
3,243
221
2,261

360
266
5.3
3.3
5.9
39.0
4.0

333
83
1.7
1.0
1.7
43.0
4.1

97
3,426
7.54
12.64

89
3,500
7.74
12.96

$ 406
441
7.8%
4.9%
9.4%
36.0%
3.8
$ 152
3,369
7.38
12.45

350
(95)
(1.8)
(1.5)
(2.6)
46.7
4.2
146
3,641
8.09
13.50

352
(49)
(0.9)
0.8
1.3
45.1
4.0
148
3,785
8.50
14.12

Calculated as Athletic Store sales divided by the average monthly ending gross square footage of the last thirteen months.
Calculated using results from continuing operations.
Represents total debt, net of cash, cash equivalents, and short-term investments. Additionally, this calculation includes the
present value of operating leases, and accordingly is considered a non-GAAP measure.
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Item 7.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Business Overview
Foot Locker, Inc., through its subsidiaries, operates in two reportable segments — Athletic Stores and
Direct-to-Customers. The Athletic Stores segment is one of the largest athletic footwear and apparel
retailers in the world, whose formats include Foot Locker, Lady Foot Locker, Kids Foot Locker, Champs
Sports, Footaction, and CCS. The Direct-to-Customers segment reflects CCS and Footlocker.com, Inc., which
sells, through its affiliates, including Eastbay, Inc., to customers through catalogs, mobile devices, and
Internet websites.
The Foot Locker brand is one of the most widely recognized names in the market segments in which the
Company operates, epitomizing high quality for the active lifestyle customer. This brand equity has aided
the Company’s ability to successfully develop and increase its portfolio of complementary retail store
formats, specifically Lady Foot Locker and Kids Foot Locker, as well as Footlocker.com, its
direct-to-customers business. Through various marketing channels, including broadcast, digital, print, and
sponsorships of various sporting events, the Company reinforces its image with a consistent messagenamely, that it is the destination for athletically inspired shoes and apparel with a wide selection of
merchandise in a full-service environment.
Store Profile

January 29,
2011

Foot Locker U.S.
Foot Locker International
Lady Foot Locker
Kids Foot Locker
Footaction
Champs Sports
CCS
Total

1,144
751
378
294
307
540
12
3,426

Opened

5
45
—
3
1
5
11
70

Closed

31
13
47
8
16
11
1
127

January 28, Relocations/
2012
Remodels

1,118
783
331
289
292
534
22
3,369

67
60
9
8
14
24
—
182

Square Footage
(in thousands)
Selling
Gross

2,656
1,148
426
403
846
1,868
34
7,381

4,499
2,276
737
692
1,351
2,845
51
12,451

Athletic Stores
The Company operates 3,369 stores in the Athletic Stores segment. The following is a brief description of
the Athletic Stores segment’s operating businesses:
Foot Locker — ‘‘Sneaker Central’’ — Foot Locker is a leading global athletic footwear and apparel retailer.
Its stores offer the latest in athletic-inspired performance products, manufactured primarily by the leading
athletic brands. Foot Locker offers products for a wide variety of activities including basketball, running,
and training. Its 1,901 stores are located in 23 countries including 1,118 in the United States, Puerto Rico,
U.S. Virgin Islands, and Guam, 129 in Canada, 563 in Europe, and a combined 91 in Australia and
New Zealand. The domestic stores have an average of 2,400 selling square feet and the international stores
have an average of 1,500 selling square feet.
Lady Foot Locker — ‘‘The Place for Her’’ — Lady Foot Locker is a leading U.S. retailer of athletic footwear,
apparel and accessories for active women. Its stores carry major athletic footwear and apparel brands, as
well as casual wear and an assortment of apparel designed for a variety of activities, including running,
walking, training, and fitness. Its 331 stores are located in the United States, Puerto Rico, and the
U.S. Virgin Islands, and have an average of 1,300 selling square feet.
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Kids Foot Locker — ‘‘Where Kids Come First’’ — Kids Foot Locker is a national children’s athletic retailer
that offers the largest selection of brand-name athletic footwear, apparel and accessories for children. Its
stores feature an environment geared to appeal to both parents and children. Its 289 stores are located in
the United States, Puerto Rico, and the U.S. Virgin Islands and have an average of 1,400 selling square feet
Footaction — ‘‘Head-to-Toe Sport Inspired Style’’ — Footaction is a national athletic footwear and apparel
retailer. The primary customers are young males that seek street-inspired athletic styles. Its 292 stores are
located throughout the United States and Puerto Rico and focus on marquee footwear and branded
apparel. The Footaction stores have an average of 2,900 selling square feet.
Champs Sports — ‘‘We Know Game’’ — Champs Sports is one of the largest mall-based specialty athletic
footwear and apparel retailers in North America. Its product categories include athletic footwear, apparel
and accessories, and a focused assortment of equipment. This combination allows Champs Sports to
differentiate itself from other mall-based stores by presenting complete product assortments in a select
number of sporting activities. Its 534 stores are located throughout the United States, Canada, Puerto Rico,
and the U.S. Virgin Islands. The Champs Sports stores have an average of 3,500 selling square feet.
CCS — ‘‘We Are Board Culture’’ — CCS serves the needs of the 12 − 20 year old seeking an authentic board
lifestyle shop. CCS is anchored in skate but appealing to the surrounding culture. The CCS format offers
board lifestyle merchandise that will fit the needs of the customer all year long and stocks the best
selection of both core and lifestyle brands. This format complements the CCS catalog and Internet business,
which was acquired in November 2008. This concept was expanded to 22 stores in 2011, all of which are
located in the United States and average 1,500 selling square feet.
Direct-to-Customers
The Company’s Direct-to-Customers segment is multi-branded and multi-channeled. This segment sells,
through its affiliates, directly to customers through catalogs as well as its Internet and mobile websites.
Eastbay, one of the affiliates, is among the largest direct marketers in the United States, providing the high
school athlete with a complete sports solution including athletic footwear, apparel, equipment, team
licensed, and private-label merchandise. In 2008, the Company purchased CCS, an Internet and catalog
retailer of skateboard equipment, apparel, footwear, and accessories targeted primarily to teenaged boys.
The retail store operations of CCS are included in the Athletic Stores segment. The Direct-to-Customers
segment operates the websites for eastbay.com, final-score.com, and teamsales.eastbay.com. Additionally
this segment operates websites aligned with the brand names of its store banners (footlocker.com,
ladyfootlocker.com, kidsfootlocker.com, footaction.com, champssports.com, and ccs.com).
Franchise Operations
In 2006, the Company entered into a ten-year area development agreement with the Alshaya Trading Co.
W.L.L., for the operation of Foot Locker stores located within the Middle East, subject to certain
restrictions. Additionally, in 2007, the Company entered into a ten-year agreement with another
third party for the exclusive right to open and operate Foot Locker stores in the Republic of Korea.
A total of 34 franchised stores were operating at January 28, 2012. Royalty income from the franchised
stores was not significant for any of the periods presented. These stores are not included in the Company’s
operating store count above.
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Reconciliation of Non-GAAP Measures
In the following tables, the Company has presented certain financial measures and ratios identified as
non-GAAP. The Company believes this non-GAAP information is a useful measure to investors because it
allows for a more direct comparison of the Company’s performance for 2011 as compared with 2010 and
is useful in assessing the Company’s progress in achieving its long-term financial objectives. The
following represents a reconciliation of the non-GAAP measures discussed throughout the Overview of
Consolidated Results:
2011
2010
2009
(in millions, except per share amounts)

Pre-tax income:
Income from continuing operations before income taxes
Pre-tax amounts excluded from GAAP:
Impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets
Impairment of assets
Reorganization costs
Impairment and other charges
Inventory reserve − recorded within cost of sales
Money market realized gain − recorded within other income
Total pre-tax amounts excluded
Income from continuing operations before income taxes
(non-GAAP)

$ 435
5
—
—
5
—
—
5

$ 257
10
—
—
10
—
(2)
8

$ 73
—
36
5
41
14
—
55

$ 440

$ 265

$ 128

$ 435
6
$ 441

$ 257
9
$ 266

$ 73
10
$ 83

$ 440
6
$ 446
7.8%
7.9%

$ 265
9
$ 274
5.3%
5.4%

$ 128
10
$ 138
1.7%
2.8%

After-tax income:
Income from continuing operations
After-tax amounts excluded
Canadian tax rate changes excluded
Income from continuing operations after-tax (non-GAAP)
Net income margin%
Net income margin% (non-GAAP)

$ 278
3
—
$ 281
4.9%
5.0%

$ 169
4
—
$ 173
3.3%
3.4%

$ 47
34
4
$ 85
1.0%
1.8%

Diluted earnings per share:
Income from continuing operations
Impairment and other charges
Inventory reserve
Money-market realized gain
Canadian tax rate changes
Income from continuing operations (non-GAAP)

$1.80
0.02
—
—
—
$1.82

$ 1.07
0.04
—
(0.01)
—
$ 1.10

$0.30
0.16
0.06
—
0.02
$0.54

Calculation of Earnings Before Interest and Taxes (EBIT):
Income from continuing operations before income taxes
Interest expense, net
EBIT
Income from continuing operations before income taxes
(non-GAAP)
Interest expense, net
EBIT (non-GAAP)
EBIT margin%
EBIT margin% (non-GAAP)
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The Company estimates the tax effect of the non-GAAP adjustments by applying its effective tax rate to
deductible items. The gain recorded with respect to The Reserve International Liquidity Fund, Ltd. was
recorded with no tax expense due to the fact that the entity that held the investment has a zero statutory
tax rate. During 2009, the provincial tax rates in Canada were reduced, which resulted in a $4 million
reduction in the value of the Company’s net deferred tax assets.
When assessing Return on Invested Capital (‘‘ROIC’’), the Company adjusts its results to reflect its
operating leases as if they qualified for capital lease treatment. Operating leases are the primary financing
vehicle used to fund store expansion and, therefore, we believe that the presentation of these leases as
capital leases is appropriate. Accordingly, the asset base and net income amounts are adjusted to reflect
this in the calculation of ROIC. ROIC, subject to certain adjustments, is also used as a measure in executive
long-term incentive compensation.
The closest GAAP measure is Return on Assets (‘‘ROA’’) and is also represented below. ROA increased to
9.4 percent as compared with 5.9 percent in the prior year reflecting the Company’s overall
performance in 2011.
2011

ROA(1)
ROIC% (non-GAAP)(2)
(1)
(2)

EBIT (non-GAAP)
+ Rent expense
- Estimated depreciation on capitalized operating leases(3)
Net operating profit
- Adjusted income tax expense(4)
= Adjusted return after taxes
Average total assets
- Average cash, cash equivalents and
short-term investments
- Average non-interest bearing current liabilities
- Average merchandise inventories
+ Average estimated asset base of capitalized
operating leases(3)
+ 13-month average merchandise inventories
= Average invested capital
ROIC%

(4)

2009

5.9%
8.3%

1.7%
5.3%

Represents income from continuing operations of $278 million, $169 million, and $47 million divided by average total assets of
$2,973 million, $2,856 million, and $2,847 million for 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively.
See below for the calculation of ROIC.
2011

(3)

2010

9.4%
11.8%

$

2010
(in millions)

$

2009

446
544
(389)
601
(218)
$ 383
$ 2,973

274
522
(366)
430
(153)
$ 277
$ 2,856

$

138
526
(370)
294
(104)
$ 190
$ 2,847

(774)
(519)
(1,064)

(642)
(461)
(1,048)

(499)
(425)
(1,079)

1,429
1,192
$ 3,237
11.8%

1,443
1,177
$ 3,325
8.3%

1,500
1,268
$ 3,612
5.3%

The determination of the capitalized operating leases and the adjustments to income have been calculated on a lease-by-lease
basis and have been consistently calculated in each of the years presented above. Capitalized operating leases represent the
best estimate of the asset base that would be recorded for operating leases as if they had been classified as capital or as if the
property were purchased.
The adjusted income tax expense represents the marginal tax rate applied to net operating profit for each of the
periods presented.
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Overview of Consolidated Results
In March of 2010, the Company announced a strategic plan, which included a series of operating initiatives
and long-term financial objectives to achieve its vision of becoming the leading global retailer of
athletically inspired shoes and apparel. Several of those objectives were exceeded during 2011 and
progress was made towards attaining many of the metrics. In March 2012, an updated long-range plan and
new long-term financial objectives were announced in light of our progress over the first two years of our
long-range plan. Our updated objectives and 2011 results are presented below:

2011

Sales (in millions)
Sales per gross square foot
EBIT margin (non-GAAP)
Net income margin (non-GAAP)
ROIC (non-GAAP)

$5,623
$ 406
7.9%
5.0%
11.8%

Prior
Long-term
Objectives

$6,000
$ 400
8.0%
5.0%
10.0%

Updated
Long-term
Objectives

$7,500
$ 500
11.0%
7.0%
14.0%

The Company recorded net income from continuing operations of $278 million, or $1.80 per diluted share
in 2011; this compares with $169 million, or $1.07 per diluted share, for the prior-year period. Included in
the results are impairment charges related to the CCS tradename intangible asset of $5 million and
$10 million in 2011 and 2010, respectively. Excluding these charges in both periods, as well as the money
market gain in 2010, non-GAAP diluted earnings per share increased by 65 percent to $1.82 per share in
2011 from $1.10 in 2010. Other highlights of our 2011 financial performance include:
•

Sales increased by 11.4 percent and comparable-store sales increased by 9.8 percent as
compared with the corresponding prior-year period. This increase was in addition to the 2010
comparable-store increase of 5.8 percent, reflecting the success of our strategic plan and the
continuing favorable athletic trend.

•

Gross margin increased 190 basis points in 2011 as compared with 2010. The cost of
merchandise rate improved by 70 basis points for the same period, while our buyers and
occupancy expenses improved by 120 basis points reflecting improved leverage on higher sales.

•

Selling, general and administrative expenses were 22.1 percent of sales, an improvement of
40 basis points as compared with the prior year.

•

Cash and cash equivalents at January 28, 2012 were $851 million, representing an increase of
$155 million.

•

Cash flow provided from operations was $497 million representing an increase of $171 million as
compared with the prior year. This increase reflects the strong sales performance coupled with
improved merchandise management. Merchandise inventories, excluding foreign currency
fluctuations increased by 1.6 percent while sales, excluding foreign currency fluctuations,
increased by 9.7 percent.

•

Capital expenditures during 2011 totaled $152 million and were primarily directed to
the remodeling or relocation of 182 stores, the build-out of 70 new stores, and
continued improvements to our websites’ features and functionality, furthering the cross
channel experience.

•

Dividends totaling $101 million were declared and paid. Effective with the first quarter 2012
dividend payment, the dividend rate was increased by 9 percent to $0.18 per share.

•

A total of $104 million, or 4.9 million shares, were repurchased as part of the previously
announced share repurchase program. On February 14, 2012, a new 3-year, $400 million share
repurchase program extending through January 2015 was approved.

•

ROIC increased to 11.8 percent as compared with the prior-year result of 8.3 percent, reflecting
profitability improvements and a more efficient balance sheet.
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The following table represents a summary of sales and operating results, reconciled to income from
continuing operations before income taxes.
2011

Sales
Athletic Stores
Direct-to-Customers
Operating Results
Athletic Stores(1)
Direct-to-Customers(2)
Restructuring (charge) income(3)
Division profit
Less: Corporate expense(4)
Operating profit
Other income(5)
Earnings before interest expense and income taxes
Interest expense, net
Income from continuing operations before income taxes
(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)
(5)

2010
(in millions)

2009

$5,110
513
$5,623

$4,617
432
$5,049

$4,448
406
$4,854

$ 495
45
540
(1)
539
102
437
4
441
6
$ 435

$ 329
30
359
—
359
97
262
4
266
9
$ 257

$ 114
32
146
1
147
67
80
3
83
10
$ 73

The year ended January 30, 2010 includes non-cash impairment charges totaling $32 million, which were recorded to
write-down long-lived assets such as store fixtures and leasehold improvements at the Company’s Lady Foot Locker, Kids Foot
Locker, Footaction, and Champs Sports divisions.
Included in the results for the year ended January 28, 2012 and January 29, 2011 are non-cash impairment charges of $5 million
and $10 million, respectively, to write down the CCS tradename intangible asset. Included in the results for the year ended
January 30, 2010 is a non-cash impairment charge of $4 million to write off software development costs.
During the first quarter of 2011, the Company increased its 1993 Repositioning and 1991 Restructuring reserve by $1 million
for repairs necessary to one of the locations comprising this reserve. During the year ended January 30, 2010, the Company
adjusted its 1999 restructuring reserves to reflect a favorable lease termination. These amounts are included in selling, general,
and administrative expenses.
During 2009, the Company restructured its organization by consolidating the Lady Foot Locker, Foot Locker U.S., Kids Foot
Locker, and Footaction businesses in addition to reducing corporate staff, resulting in a $5 million charge.
Included in the year ended January 29, 2011 is a $2 million gain to reflect the Company’s settlement of its investment in the
Reserve International Liquidity Fund.

Sales
All references to comparable-store sales for a given period relate to sales from stores (including sales from
the Direct-to-Customers segment and sales from stores that have been relocated or remodeled during the
relevant periods) that are open at the period-end, that have been open for more than one year, and exclude
the effect of foreign currency fluctuations. Stores opened and closed during the period are not included.
Sales from acquired businesses that include the purchase of inventory are included in the computation of
comparable-store sales after 15 months of operations.
Sales in 2011 increased to $5,623 million, or by 11.4 percent as compared with 2010. Excluding the effect
of foreign currency fluctuations, sales increased 9.7 percent as compared with 2010. Comparable-store
sales increased by 9.8 percent. This increase primarily reflects higher footwear sales. Apparel and
accessories sales also increased, which represented approximately 24 percent of sales, reflecting a modest
increase over the corresponding prior-year period of 23 percent.
Sales of $5,049 million in 2010 increased by 4.0 percent from sales of $4,854 million in 2009. Excluding the
effect of foreign currency fluctuations, sales increased 4.6 percent as compared with 2009.
Comparable-store sales increased by 5.8 percent.
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Gross Margin
Gross margin as a percentage of sales was 31.9 percent in 2011, increasing by 190 basis points as
compared with 2010. This increase reflected a 70 basis points improvement in the merchandise margin
rate, which is attributable to an improved inventory position, better merchandise flow, and lower
markdowns as the Company was less promotional during 2011. The effect of vendor allowances, as
compared with the prior year, contributed 10 basis points to this improvement. The increase in the gross
margin rate also included a decrease of 120 basis points in the occupancy and buyers salary expense rate
reflecting improved leverage on largely fixed costs.
Gross margin as a percentage of sales was 30.0 percent in 2010 increasing 260 basis points as compared
with 2009. In 2009, the Company recorded a $14 million inventory reserve on certain aged apparel as part
of its new apparel strategy. Excluding this charge, gross margin would have increased by 230 basis points
as compared with 2009. This increase reflected an increase of 150 basis points in the merchandise margin
rate reflecting lower markdowns as the Company was less promotional during the year as compared with
the prior year. Lower vendor allowances during the current year, reflecting the overall lower promotional
activity, negatively affected gross margin by 10 basis points. The increase in the gross margin also reflected
a decrease of 80 basis points in the occupancy and buyers salary expense rate due to improved leverage
and expense reductions.
Selling, General and Administrative Expenses
Selling, general and administrative (‘‘SG&A’’) expenses increased by $106 million to $1,244 million in
2011, or by 9.3 percent, as compared with 2010. SG&A as a percentage of sales decreased to 22.1 percent
as compared with 22.5 percent in 2010. Excluding the effect of foreign currency fluctuations in 2011, SG&A
increased by $86 million. This increase primarily reflects higher variable expenses to support sales, such as
store wages and banking expenses. Also during 2011, the Company increased its marketing and
advertising spending by $25 million in order to support the Company’s strategic objective of
differentiating its formats.
SG&A expenses increased by $39 million to $1,138 million in 2010, or by 3.5 percent, as compared with
2009. SG&A as a percentage of sales decreased to 22.5 percent as compared with 22.6 percent in 2009, due
to expense management and the increase in sales. Excluding the effect of foreign currency fluctuations in
2010, SG&A increased by $47 million. This increase primarily reflects higher incentive compensation costs
totaling $45 million, partially offset by expense management efforts.
Corporate Expense
Corporate expense consists of unallocated general and administrative expenses as well as depreciation and
amortization related to the Company’s corporate headquarters, centrally managed departments,
unallocated insurance and benefit programs, certain foreign exchange transaction gains and losses, and
other items. Depreciation and amortization included in corporate expense was $11 million, $12 million,
and $13 million in 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively.
Corporate expense increased by $5 million to $102 million in 2011 as compared with 2010. The increase
represents primarily higher share-based compensation expense and miscellaneous professional fees.
Corporate expense increased by $30 million to $97 million in 2010 as compared with 2009. Incentive
compensation costs represented an increase of $29 million as a result of the Company’s outperformance as
compared with plan. Additionally, 2009 included a $5 million charge related to the reorganization of its
operations and corporate staff reductions.
Depreciation and Amortization
Depreciation and amortization of $110 million increased by 3.8 percent in 2011 from $106 million in 2010.
Foreign currency fluctuations increased depreciation and amortization expense by $2 million.
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Depreciation and amortization of $106 million decreased by 5.4 percent in 2010 from $112 million in
2009. This decrease primarily reflects reduced depreciation and amortization resulting from store
long-lived asset impairment charges recorded in 2009. Additionally, foreign currency fluctuations reduced
depreciation and amortization expense by $1 million.
Interest Expense, Net
2011

Interest expense
Interest income
Interest expense, net
Weighted-average interest rate (excluding fees)

$ 13
(7)
$ 6
7.6%

2010
(in millions)

$ 14
(5)
$ 9
7.6%

2009

$ 13
(3)
$ 10
7.3%

The overall reduction in net interest expense in 2011 as compared with 2010 primarily reflected increased
income earned on higher cash and cash equivalent balances.
The reduction of net interest expense of $1 million in 2010 as compared with 2009 primarily related to
increased income earned on higher cash and cash equivalent balances, partially offset by an increase in
interest expense due to higher fees associated with the revolving credit facility.
The Company did not have any short-term borrowings for any of the periods presented.
Other Income
Other income was $4 million in both 2011 and 2010 and was $3 million in 2009. For 2011, other income
primarily includes $2 million of lease termination gains related to the sales of leasehold interests,
$1 million for insurance recoveries, as well as royalty income. For 2010, other income includes a $2 million
gain on its money-market investment, as well as royalty income, and gains on lease terminations related to
certain lease interests in Europe. Other income in 2009 primarily reflects $4 million related to gains from
insurance recoveries, gains on the purchase and retirement of bonds, and royalty income, partially offset
by foreign currency option contract premiums of $1 million.
Income Taxes
The effective tax rate for 2011 was 36.0 percent, as compared with 34.3 percent in 2010. The Company
regularly assesses the adequacy of the provisions for income tax contingencies in accordance with the
applicable authoritative guidance on accounting for income taxes. As a result, the reserves for
unrecognized tax benefits may be adjusted as a result of new facts and developments, such as changes to
interpretations of relevant tax law, assessments from taxing authorities, settlements with taxing
authorities, and lapses of statutes of limitation. The effective tax rate for 2011 includes reserve releases of
$3 million due to audit settlements and lapses of statutes of limitations as well as other true-up
adjustments. Excluding these items and the prior-year adjustments discussed below, the effective tax rate
increased primarily due to the higher proportion of income earned in higher tax jurisdictions in 2011.
The effective tax rate for 2010 was 34.3 percent, as compared with 36.0 percent in 2009. The effective tax
rate decreased primarily due to a benefit of $7 million from a favorable tax settlement offset in part by
$4 million charge recorded in the fourth quarter to correct a historical error in the calculation of income
taxes on amounts included in accumulated other comprehensive loss pertaining to the Company’s
Canadian pension plans. Additionally, the 2009 effective rate included Canadian provincial tax rate
changes that resulted in a $4 million expense arising from a reduction in the value of the Company’s net
deferred tax assets. Excluding these items, the effective rate increased as compared with the prior year
reflecting a higher proportion of income earned in higher tax jurisdictions.
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Segment Information
The Company’s two reportable segments, Athletic Stores and Direct-to-Customers, are based on its method
of internal reporting. The Company evaluates performance based on several factors, the primary financial
measure of which is division results. Division profit reflects income from continuing operations before
income taxes, corporate expense, non-operating income, and net interest expense.
Athletic Stores
2011

Sales
Division profit
Division profit margin
Number of stores at year end
Sales per average gross square foot

$5,110
$ 495
9.7%
3,369
$ 406

2010
(in millions)

$4,617
$ 329
7.1%
3,426
$ 360

2009

$4,448
$ 114
2.6%
3,500
$ 333

2011 compared with 2010
Athletic Stores sales of $5,110 million increased 10.7 percent in 2011, as compared with $4,617 million in
2010. Excluding the effect of foreign currency fluctuations, primarily related to the euro, sales from the
Athletic Stores segment increased by 8.9 percent in 2011. Comparable-store sales also increased
8.9 percent as compared with the prior year. The majority of the increase represented increased footwear
sales reflecting the continued success of key styles of technical, light-weight running and basketball
footwear. Apparel sales continue to benefit from offerings that coordinate with key footwear styles. All
formats within this segment experienced significant increases in sales as compared with the prior year,
except for Lady Foot Locker. While Foot Locker Europe’s comparable-stores sales were positive for the
fourth quarter and full-year of 2011, sales were negatively affected by the current economic conditions.
Lady Foot Locker’s sales declined in 2011, principally due to operating 47 fewer stores. This was coupled
with a decline in toning footwear sales, which negatively affected the results earlier in the year.
Management is performing a strategic review of the women’s business and is developing various initiatives
intended to improve future performance.
Athletic Stores reported a division profit of $495 million in 2011 as compared with $329 million in 2010,
an increase of $166 million as compared with the corresponding prior-year period. Foreign currency
fluctuations positively affected division profit by approximately $8 million as compared with the
corresponding prior-year period. The increase primarily reflects the strong U.S. performance, led by Foot
Locker and Champs Sports, however all international locations also increased. Strong sales and improved
gross margin contributed to an overall profit flow-through of 33.7 percent.
2010 compared with 2009
Athletic Stores sales of $4,617 million increased 3.8 percent in 2010, as compared with $4,448 million in
2009. Excluding the effect of foreign currency fluctuations, primarily related to the euro, sales from the
Athletic Stores segment increased by 4.4 percent in 2010. Comparable-store sales for the Athletic Stores
segment increased 5.7 percent as compared with the prior year. The Company’s U.S. operations sales
increased 3.9 percent reflecting meaningful increases in all formats, except for Lady Foot Locker. Lady Foot
Locker was negatively affected by the lower demand for certain styles, in particular toning. Excluding the
effect of foreign currency fluctuations, international sales increased 5.5 percent in 2010 as compared with
2009. Foot Locker Europe’s sales reflected strong increases in men’s footwear and apparel.
Athletic Stores reported a division profit of $329 million in 2010 as compared with $114 million in 2009.
The 2009 results included impairment charges totaling $32 million, which were recorded to write down
long-lived assets such as store fixtures and leasehold improvements, at the Company’s Lady Foot Locker,
Kids Foot Locker, Footaction, and Champs Sports divisions for 787 stores. Additionally, in 2009 the
Company recorded a $14 million inventory reserve on certain aged apparel. Excluding these charges,
division profit increased by $169 million as compared with the corresponding prior-year period. This
increase reflects division profit gains in both the Company’s domestic and international operations.
Foreign currency fluctuations negatively affected division profit by approximately $4 million as compared
with the corresponding prior-year period.
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Direct-to-Customers
2011

Sales
Division profit
Division profit margin

$513
$ 45
8.8%

2010
(in millions)

$432
$ 30
6.9%

2009

$406
$ 32
7.9%

2011 compared with 2010
Direct-to-Customers sales increased 18.8 percent to $513 million in 2011, as compared with $432 million
in 2010. Internet sales increased by 21.9 percent to $457 million, as compared with Internet sales of
$375 million 2010. Internet sales primarily reflected the strong performance of the Eastbay website,
coupled with improved sales from the store-banner websites. Catalog sales decreased by 1.8 percent to
$56 million in 2011 from $57 million in 2010.
The Direct-to-Customers business generated division profit of $45 million in 2011, as compared with
$30 million in 2010. Division profit, as a percentage of sales, was 8.8 percent in 2011 and 6.9 percent in
2010. During the fourth quarters of 2011 and 2010, impairment charges of $5 million and $10 million,
respectively, were recorded to write down CCS intangible assets, specifically the non-amortizing
tradename. The impairments were primarily the result of reduced revenue projections. Excluding the
impairment charges in each of the periods, division profit increased by $10 million reflecting the strong
sales performance, partially offset by higher variable costs.
2010 compared with 2009
Direct-to-Customers sales increased 6.4 percent to $432 million in 2010, as compared with $406 million in
2009. Effective with the first quarter of 2010, CCS Internet and catalog sales have been included in the
computation of comparable-store sales. Internet sales increased by 9.0 percent to $375 million, as
compared with 2009 reflecting a strong sales performance through the Company’s store banner websites,
which benefited from improved functionality and more compelling product assortments. Catalog sales
decreased by 8.1 percent to $57 million in 2010 from $62 million in 2009.
The Direct-to-Customers business generated division profit of $30 million in 2010, as compared with
$32 million in 2009. Division profit, as a percentage of sales, was 6.9 percent in 2010 and 7.9 percent in
2009. Included in the 2010 division profit is a $10 million impairment charge, which was recorded to write
down CCS intangible assets. The impairment was primarily the result of reduced revenue projections.
Included in 2009 division profit is a $4 million impairment charge, which was recorded to write off certain
software development costs as a result of management’s decision to terminate the project. Excluding these
charges, division profit increased by $4 million as compared with the prior year.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
Liquidity
The Company’s primary source of liquidity has been cash flow from operations, while the principal uses of
cash have been to: fund inventory and other working capital requirements; finance capital expenditures
related to store openings, store remodelings, Internet and mobile sites, information systems, and other
support facilities; make retirement plan contributions, quarterly dividend payments, and interest
payments; and fund other cash requirements to support the development of its short-term and long-term
operating strategies. The Company generally finances real estate with operating leases. Management
believes its cash, cash equivalents, future cash flow from operations, and the Company’s current revolving
credit facility will be adequate to fund these requirements.
As of January 28, 2012, the Company had $498 million of cash and cash equivalents held in foreign
jurisdictions. Because we plan to permanently reinvest our foreign earnings, in accordance with U.S. GAAP,
we have not provided for U.S. federal and state income taxes or foreign withholding taxes that may result
from future remittances of undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries. Depending on the source,
amount, and timing of a repatriation, some tax may be payable. The Company believes that its cash
invested domestically, future domestic cash flows, and its current revolving credit agreement are sufficient
to satisfy domestic requirements.
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The Company may also from time to time repurchase its common stock or seek to retire or purchase
outstanding debt through open market purchases, privately negotiated transactions, or otherwise. Such
repurchases, if any, will depend on prevailing market conditions, liquidity requirements, contractual
restrictions, and other factors. The amounts involved may be material. On February 14, 2012, the
Company’s Board of Directors approved a new 3-year, $400 million share repurchase program extending
through January 2015, replacing the previous $250 million program.
Any material adverse change in customer demand, fashion trends, competitive market forces, or customer
acceptance of the Company’s merchandise mix and retail locations, uncertainties related to the effect of
competitive products and pricing, the Company’s reliance on a few key vendors for a significant portion of
its merchandise purchases and risks associated with global product sourcing, economic conditions
worldwide, the effects of currency fluctuations, as well as other factors listed under the heading
‘‘Disclosure Regarding Forward-Looking Statements,’’ could affect the ability of the Company to continue
to fund its needs from business operations.
Maintaining access to merchandise that the Company considers appropriate for its business may be subject
to the policies and practices of its key vendors. Therefore, the Company believes that it is critical to
continue to maintain satisfactory relationships with its key vendors. In both 2011 and 2010, the Company
purchased approximately 82 percent of its merchandise from its top five vendors and expects to continue
to obtain a significant percentage of its athletic product from these vendors in future periods.
Approximately 61 percent in 2011 and 63 percent in 2010 was purchased from one vendor — Nike, Inc.
The Company’s 2012 planned capital expenditures and lease acquisition costs are approximately
$160 million. Planned capital expenditures are $147 million and planned lease acquisition costs related to
the Company’s operations in Europe are $13 million. The Company’s planned capital expenditures include
$110 million related to modernizations of existing stores and the planned opening of 82 new stores, as
well as $37 million for the development of information systems and infrastructure. The Company has the
ability to revise and reschedule much of the anticipated capital expenditure program, should the
Company’s financial position require it.
Free Cash Flow (non-GAAP measure)
In addition to net cash provided by operating activities, the Company uses free cash flow as a useful
measure of performance and as an indication of the strength of the Company and its ability to generate
cash. The Company defines free cash flow as net cash provided by operating activities less capital
expenditures (which is classified as an investing activity). The Company believes the presentation of free
cash flow is relevant and useful for investors because it allows investors to evaluate the cash generated
from the Company’s underlying operations in a manner similar to the method used by management. Free
cash flow is not defined under U.S. GAAP. Therefore, it should not be considered a substitute for income or
cash flow data prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP and may not be comparable to similarly titled
measures used by other companies. It should not be inferred that the entire free cash flow amount is
available for discretionary expenditures.
The following table presents a reconciliation of the Company’s net cash flow provided by operating
activities, the most directly comparable GAAP financial measure, to free cash flow.

Net cash provided by operating activities of
continuing operations
Capital expenditures
Free cash flow (non-GAAP)
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2011

2010
(in millions)

2009

$ 497
(152)
$ 345

$326
(97)
$229

$346
(89)
$257

Operating Activities
Operating activities from continuing operations provided cash of $497 million in 2011 as compared with
$326 million in 2010. These amounts reflect income from continuing operations adjusted for non-cash
items and working capital changes. Non-cash impairment and other charges were $5 million and
$10 million for the years ending January 28, 2012 and January 29, 2011, respectively, reflecting the CCS
tradename impairment charges. During 2011, the Company contributed $28 million to its U.S. and
Canadian qualified pension plans as compared with $32 million contributed in 2010. The change in
merchandise inventory, net of the change in accounts payable, as compared with the prior-year period,
reflects the continued improvement in flowing merchandise. The change in income tax receivables and
payables primarily reflects the receipt of a $46 million IRS refund resulting from a loss carryback.
Operating activities from continuing operations provided cash of $326 million in 2010 as compared with
$346 million in 2009. Non-cash impairment and other charges were $10 million and $36 million for the
years ending January 29, 2011 and January 30, 2010, respectively. The 2009 charges totaled $36 million,
comprised of $32 million to write-down long-lived assets such as store fixtures and leasehold
improvements at the Company’s Lady Foot Locker, Kids Foot Locker, Footaction, and Champs Sports
divisions and $4 million to write off software development costs. During 2010, the Company contributed
$32 million to its U.S. and Canadian qualified pension plans as compared with $100 million contributed in
2009. The change in merchandise inventory, net of the change in accounts payable, as compared with the
prior-year period, represents inventory required to support the favorable sales trend. During 2010, the
Company paid $24 million to settle the liability associated with the terminated European net investment
hedge, whereas in the prior-year period the Company terminated its interest rate swaps and received
$19 million.
Investing Activities
Net cash used in investing activities of the Company’s continuing operations was $149 million in 2011 as
compared with $87 million used in investing activities in 2010. Capital expenditures were $152 million,
primarily related to the remodeling of 182 stores, the build-out of 70 new stores, and various corporate
technology upgrades and e-commerce website enhancements, representing an increase of $55 million as
compared with the prior year.
Net cash used in investing activities of the Company’s continuing operations was $87 million in 2010 as
compared with $72 million used in investing activities in 2009. During 2010, the Company received
$9 million from the Reserve International Liquidity Fund representing further redemptions. Capital
expenditures were $97 million primarily related to store remodeling and to the development of
information systems and infrastructure, representing an increase of $8 million as compared with the
prior year.
Financing Activities
Net cash used in financing activities of continuing operations was $178 million in 2011 as compared with
$127 million in 2010. During 2011, the Company repurchased 4,904,100 shares of its common stock under
its common share repurchase program for $104 million. Additionally, the Company declared and paid
dividends totaling $101 million and $93 million in 2011 and 2010, respectively, representing a quarterly
rate of $0.165 and $0.15 per share in 2011 and 2010, respectively. During 2011 and 2010, the Company
received proceeds from the issuance of common stock and treasury stock in connection with the employee
stock programs of $22 million and $13 million, respectively. During 2011, in connection with stock option
exercises, the Company recorded excess tax benefits related to share-based compensation of $5 million as
a financing activity.
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Net cash used in financing activities of continuing operations was $127 million in 2010 as compared with
$94 million in 2009. During 2010, the Company repurchased 3,215,000 shares of its common stock for
$50 million. Additionally, the Company declared and paid dividends totaling $93 million and $94 million in
2010 and 2009, respectively, representing a quarterly rate of $0.15 per share in both 2010 and 2009.
During 2010 and 2009, the Company received proceeds from the issuance of common stock and treasury
stock in connection with the employee stock programs of $13 million and $3 million, respectively. During
2010, in connection with stock option exercises, the Company recorded excess tax benefits related to
share-based compensation of $3 million as a financing activity.
Capital Structure
On January 27, 2012, the Company entered into an amended and restated credit agreement (the ‘‘2011
Restated Credit Agreement) with its banks, replacing the 2009 Credit Agreement. The 2011 Restated
Credit Agreement provides for a $200 million asset based revolving credit facility maturing on
January 27, 2017. In addition, during the term of the 2011 Restated Credit Agreement, the Company may
make up to four requests for additional credit commitments in an aggregate amount not to exceed $200
million. Interest is based on the LIBOR rate in effect at the time of the borrowing plus a 1.25 to 1.50
percent margin depending on certain provisions as defined in the 2011 Restated Credit Agreement.
The 2011 Restated Credit Agreement provides for a security interest in certain of the Company’s domestic
assets, including certain inventory assets, but excluding intellectual property. The Company is not required
to comply with any financial covenants as long as there are no outstanding borrowings. With regard to the
payment of dividends and share repurchases, there are no restrictions if the Company is not borrowing
and the payments are funded through cash on hand. If the Company is borrowing, Availability as of the end
of each fiscal month during the subsequent projected six fiscal months following the payment must be at
least 20 percent of the lesser of the Aggregate Commitments and the Borrowing Base (as defined in the
2011 Restated Credit Agreement). The Company’s management does not currently expect to borrow under
the facility in 2012, other than amounts used to support standby letters of credit.
Credit Rating
As of March 26, 2012, the Company’s corporate credit ratings from Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s
Investors Service are BB and Ba3, respectively. In addition, Moody’s Investors Service has rated the
Company’s senior unsecured notes B1.
Debt Capitalization and Equity (non-GAAP Measure)
For purposes of calculating debt to total capitalization, the Company includes the present value of
operating lease commitments in total net debt. Total net debt including the present value of operating
leases is considered a non-GAAP financial measure. The present value of operating leases is discounted
using various interest rates ranging from 4.25 percent to 14.5 percent, which represent the Company’s
incremental borrowing rate at inception of the lease. Operating leases are the primary financing vehicle
used to fund store expansion and, therefore, we believe that the inclusion of the present value of operating
leases in total debt is useful to our investors, credit constituencies, and rating agencies.
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The following table sets forth the components of the Company’s capitalization, both with and without the
present value of operating leases:
2011

Long-term debt
Present value of operating leases
Total debt including the present value of operating leases
Less:
Cash and cash equivalents
Total net debt including the present value of operating leases
Shareholders’ equity
Total capitalization
Total net debt capitalization percent
Total net debt capitalization percent including the present value of
operating leases (non-GAAP)

2010
(in millions)

$ 135
1,905
2,040

$ 137
1,852
1,989

851
1,189
2,110
$3,299
—%

696
1,293
2,025
$3,318
—%

36.0%

39.0%

The Company increased cash and cash equivalents by $155 million during 2011, the result of strong cash
flow generation from operating activities. The change in total debt including the present value of the
operating leases, as compared with the prior-year period, primarily reflects the effect of lease renewals,
offset, in part, by store closures and the effect of foreign currency fluctuations. Including the present value
of operating leases, the Company’s net debt capitalization percent decreased 300 basis points in 2011.
Contractual Obligations and Commitments
The following tables represent the scheduled maturities of the Company’s contractual cash obligations and
other commercial commitments at January 28, 2012:
Payments Due by Fiscal Period

Contractual Cash Obligations

Long-term debt(1)
Operating leases(2)
Other long-term liabilities(3)
Total contractual cash obligations

Other Commercial Commitments

Unused line of credit(4)
Standby letters of credit
Purchase commitments(5)
Other(6)
Total commercial commitments
(1)
(2)

(3)

(4)

Total

2012

2013 − 2014
(in millions)

2015 − 2016

2017 and
Beyond

$ 230
2,517
—
$2,747

$ 11
478
—
$489

$ 22
786
—
$808

$ 22
581
—
$603

$175
672
—
$847

Payments Due by Fiscal Period

Total
Amounts
Committed

$ 199
1
1,801
27
$2,028

2012

2013 − 2014
(in millions)

2015 − 2016

2017 and
Beyond

—
—
1,801
17
$1,818

$ —
—
—
8
$ 8

$199
1
—
1
$201

$ —
—
—
1
$ 1

$

The amounts presented above represent the contractual maturities of the Company’s long-term debt, including interest;
however, it excludes the unamortized gain of the interest rate swap of $15 million. Additional information is included in the
Long-Term Debt note under ‘‘Item 8. Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.’’
The amounts presented represent the future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases. In addition to
minimum rent, certain of the Company’s leases require the payment of additional costs for insurance, maintenance, and other
costs. These costs have historically represented approximately 25 to 30 percent of the minimum rent amount. These additional
amounts are not included in the table of contractual commitments as the timing and/or amounts of such payments are
unknown.
The Company’s other liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheet at January 28, 2012 primarily comprise pension and
postretirement benefits, deferred rent liability, income taxes, workers’ compensation and general liability reserves, and various
other accruals. Other than this liability, other amounts (including the Company’s unrecognized tax benefits of $65 million) have
been excluded from the above table as the timing and/or amount of any cash payment is uncertain. The timing of the remaining
amounts that are known has not been included as they are minimal and not useful to the presentation. Additional information is
included in the Other Liabilities, Financial Instruments and Risk Management, and Retirement Plans and Other Benefits notes
under ‘‘Item 8. Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.’’
Represents the unused domestic lines of credit pursuant to the Company’s $200 million revolving credit agreement. The
Company’s management currently does not expect to borrow under the facility in 2012, other than amounts used to support
standby letters of credit.
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(5)
(6)

Represents open purchase orders, as well as other commitments for merchandise purchases, at January 28, 2012. The Company
is obligated under the terms of purchase orders; however, the Company is generally able to renegotiate the timing and quantity
of these orders with certain vendors in response to shifts in consumer preferences.
Represents payments required by non-merchandise purchase agreements.

The Company does not have any off-balance sheet financing, other than operating leases entered into in
the normal course of business as disclosed above, or unconsolidated special purpose entities. The
Company does not participate in transactions that generate relationships with unconsolidated entities or
financial partnerships, including variable interest entities. The Company’s policy prohibits the use of
derivatives for which there is no underlying exposure.
In connection with the sale of various businesses and assets, the Company may be obligated for certain
lease commitments transferred to third parties and pursuant to certain normal representations,
warranties, or indemnifications entered into with the purchasers of such businesses or assets. Although
the maximum potential amounts for such obligations cannot be readily determined, management believes
that the resolution of such contingencies will not significantly affect the Company’s consolidated financial
position, liquidity, or results of operations. The Company is also operating certain stores for which lease
agreements are in the process of being negotiated with landlords. Although there is no contractual
commitment to make these payments, it is likely that leases will be executed.
Critical Accounting Policies
Management’s responsibility for integrity and objectivity in the preparation and presentation of the
Company’s financial statements requires diligent application of appropriate accounting policies.
Generally, the Company’s accounting policies and methods are those specifically required by U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles. Included in the Summary of Significant Accounting Policies note
in ‘‘Item 8. Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Data’’ is a summary of the Company’s
most significant accounting policies. In some cases, management is required to calculate amounts based on
estimates for matters that are inherently uncertain. The Company believes the following to be the most
critical of those accounting policies that necessitate subjective judgments.
Merchandise Inventories
Merchandise inventories for the Company’s Athletic Stores are valued at the lower of cost or market using
the retail inventory method (‘‘RIM’’). The RIM is commonly used by retail companies to value inventories
at cost and calculate gross margins due to its practicality. Under the retail method, cost is determined by
applying a cost-to-retail percentage across groupings of similar items, known as departments. The
cost-to-retail percentage is applied to ending inventory at its current owned retail valuation to determine
the cost of ending inventory on a department basis. The RIM is a system of averages that requires
management’s estimates and assumptions regarding markups, markdowns and shrink, among others, and
as such, could result in distortions of inventory amounts.
Significant judgment is required for these estimates and assumptions, as well as to differentiate between
promotional and other markdowns that may be required to correctly reflect merchandise inventories at
the lower of cost or market. The Company provides reserves based on current selling prices when the
inventory has not been marked down to market. The failure to take permanent markdowns on a timely
basis may result in an overstatement of cost under the retail inventory method. The decision to take
permanent markdowns includes many factors, including the current environment, inventory levels, and
the age of the item. Management believes this method and its related assumptions, which have been
consistently applied, to be reasonable.
Vendor Reimbursements
In the normal course of business, the Company receives allowances from its vendors for markdowns taken.
Vendor allowances are recognized as a reduction in cost of sales in the period in which the markdowns are
taken. Vendor allowances contributed 30 basis points to the 2011 gross margin rate. The Company also
has volume-related agreements with certain vendors, under which it receives rebates based on fixed
percentages of cost purchases. These volume-related rebates are recorded in cost of sales when the
product is sold and were not significant to the 2011 gross margin rate.

28

The Company receives support from some of its vendors in the form of reimbursements for cooperative
advertising and catalog costs for the launch and promotion of certain products. The reimbursements are
agreed upon with vendors for specific advertising campaigns and catalogs. Cooperative income, to the
extent that it reimburses specific, incremental and identifiable costs incurred to date, is recorded in SG&A
in the same period as the associated expenses are incurred. Cooperative reimbursements amounted to
approximately 18 percent and 11 percent of total advertising and catalog costs, respectively, in 2011.
Reimbursements received that are in excess of specific, incremental and identifiable costs incurred to date
are recognized as a reduction to the cost of merchandise and are reflected in cost of sales as the
merchandise is sold and were not significant in 2011.
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets, Goodwill and Other Intangibles
The Company recognizes an impairment loss when circumstances indicate that the carrying value of
long-lived tangible and intangible assets with finite lives may not be recoverable. Management’s policy in
determining whether an impairment indicator exists, a triggering event, comprises measurable operating
performance criteria at the division level as well as qualitative measures. If an analysis is necessitated by
the occurrence of a triggering event, the Company uses assumptions, which are predominately identified
from the Company’s strategic long-range plans, in determining the impairment amount. In the calculation
of the fair value of long-lived assets, the Company compares the carrying amount of the asset with the
estimated future cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset. If the carrying amount of the asset
exceeds the estimated expected undiscounted future cash flows, the Company measures the amount of the
impairment by comparing the carrying amount of the asset with its estimated fair value. The estimation of
fair value is measured by discounting expected future cash flows at the Company’s weighted-average cost
of capital. Management believes its policy is reasonable and is consistently applied. Future expected cash
flows are based upon estimates that, if not achieved, may result in significantly different results.
The Company performs an impairment review of its goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives if
impairment indicators arise and, at a minimum, annually. We consider many factors in evaluating whether
the carrying value of goodwill may not be recoverable, including declines in stock price and market
capitalization in relation to the book value of the Company and macroeconomic conditions affecting retail.
The Company has chosen to perform this review at the beginning of each fiscal year, and it is done in a
two-step approach. The initial step requires that the carrying value of each reporting unit be compared
with its estimated fair value. The second step — to evaluate goodwill of a reporting unit for
impairment — is only required if the carrying value of that reporting unit exceeds its estimated fair value.
The Company used a combination of a discounted cash flow approach and market-based approach to
determine the fair value of a reporting unit. The determination of discounted cash flows of the reporting
units and assets and liabilities within the reporting units requires us to make significant estimates and
assumptions. These estimates and assumptions primarily include, but are not limited to, the discount rate,
terminal growth rates, earnings before depreciation and amortization, and capital expenditures forecasts.
The market approach requires judgment and uses one or more methods to compare the reporting unit
with similar businesses, business ownership interests or securities that have been sold. Due to the
inherent uncertainty involved in making these estimates, actual results could differ from those estimates.
The Company evaluated the merits of each significant assumption, both individually and in the aggregate,
used to determine the fair value of the reporting units, as well as the fair values of the corresponding
assets and liabilities within the reporting units, and concluded they are reasonable and are consistent with
prior valuations.
Owned trademarks and tradenames that have been determined to have indefinite lives are not subject to
amortization but are reviewed at least annually for potential impairment. The fair values of purchased
intangible assets are estimated and compared to their carrying values. We estimate the fair value of these
intangible assets based on an income approach using the relief-from-royalty method. This methodology
assumes that, in lieu of ownership, a third party would be willing to pay a royalty in order to exploit the
related benefits of these types of assets. This approach is dependent on a number of factors, including
estimates of future growth and trends, royalty rates in the category of intellectual property, discount rates,
and other variables. We base our fair value estimates on assumptions we believe to be reasonable, but
which are unpredictable and inherently uncertain. Actual future results may differ from those estimates.
We recognize an impairment loss when the estimated fair value of the intangible asset is less than the
carrying value.
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The Company’s review of goodwill did not result in any impairment charges for the years ended
January 28, 2012 and January 29, 2011 as the fair value of each of the reporting units substantially exceeds
its carrying value.
The Company recorded impairment charges of $5 million and $10 million in 2011 and 2010, respectively,
related to its CCS tradename, primarily as a result of reduced revenue projections for this business.
Share-Based Compensation
The Company estimates the fair value of options granted using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The
Company estimates the expected term of options granted using its historical exercise and post-vesting
employment termination patterns, which the Company believes are representative of future behavior.
Changing the expected term by one year changes the fair value by 7 to 9 percent depending if the change
was an increase or decrease to the expected term. The Company estimates the expected volatility of its
common stock at the grant date using a weighted-average of the Company’s historical volatility and
implied volatility from traded options on the Company’s common stock. A 50 basis point change in
volatility would have a 1 percent change to the fair value. The risk-free interest rate assumption is
determined using the Federal Reserve nominal rates for U.S. Treasury zero-coupon bonds with maturities
similar to those of the expected term of the award being valued. The expected dividend yield is derived
from the Company’s historical experience. A 50 basis point change to the dividend yield would change the
fair value by approximately 4 percent. The Company records stock-based compensation expense only for
those awards expected to vest using an estimated forfeiture rate based on its historical pre-vesting
forfeiture data, which it believes are representative of future behavior, and periodically will revise those
estimates in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates. The Black-Scholes option
pricing valuation model requires the use of subjective assumptions. Changes in these assumptions can
materially affect the fair value of the options. The Company may elect to use different assumptions under
the Black-Scholes option pricing model in the future if there is a difference between the assumptions used
and the actual factors that become known over time.
Pension and Postretirement Liabilities
The Company determines its obligations for pension and postretirement liabilities based upon
assumptions related to discount rates, expected long-term rates of return on invested plan assets, salary
increases, age, and mortality, among others. Management reviews all assumptions annually with its
independent actuaries, taking into consideration existing and future economic conditions and the
Company’s intentions with regard to the plans.
Long-Term Rate of Return Assumption — The expected rate of return on plan assets is the long-term rate
of return expected to be earned on the plans’ assets and is recognized as a component of pension expense.
The rate is based on the plans’ weighted-average target asset allocation, as well as historical and future
expected performance of those assets. The target asset allocation is selected to obtain an investment
return that is sufficient to cover the expected benefit payments and to reduce future contributions by the
Company. The expected rate of return on plan assets is reviewed annually and revised, as necessary, to
reflect changes in the financial markets and our investment strategy. The weighted-average long-term rate
of return used to determine 2011 pension expense was 6.59 percent. A decrease of 50 basis points in the
weighted-average expected long-term rate of return would have increased 2011 pension expense by
approximately $3 million. The actual return on plan assets in a given year typically differs from the
expected long-term rate of return, and the resulting gain or loss is deferred and amortized into expense
over the average life expectancy of its inactive participants.

30

Discount Rate — An assumed discount rate is used to measure the present value of future cash flow
obligations of the plans and the interest cost component of pension expense and postretirement income.
The cash flows are then discounted to their present value and an overall discount rate is determined. In
2011, the Company changed how the discount rate was selected to measure the present value of U.S.
benefit obligations from the Citibank Pension Discount curve to Towers Watson’s Bond:Link model. The
current discount rate is determined by reference to the Bond:Link interest rate model based upon a
portfolio of highly rated U.S. corporate bonds with individual bonds that are theoretically purchased to
settle the plan’s anticipated cash outflows. The discount rate selected to measure the present value of the
Company’s Canadian benefit obligations was developed by using the plan’s bond portfolio indices, which
match the benefit obligations.
The fluctuations in stock and bond markets could cause actual investment results to be significantly
different from those assumed, and therefore, significantly impact the valuation of the assets in our pension
trust. The weighted-average discount rates used to determine the 2011 benefit obligations related to the
Company’s pension and postretirement plans were 4.16 percent and 4.00 percent, respectively. A decrease
of 50 basis points in the weighted-average discount rate would have increased the accumulated benefit
obligation of the pension plans at January 28, 2012 by approximately $32 million, and would have
increased the accumulated benefit obligation on the postretirement plan by approximately $1 million. Such
a decrease would not have significantly changed 2011 pension expense or postretirement income.
The Company maintains two postretirement medical plans, one covering executive officers and certain key
employees of the Company, (‘‘SERP Medical Plan’’), and the other covering all other associates. With
respect to the SERP Medical Plan, a one percent change in the assumed health care cost trend rate would
change this plan’s accumulated benefit obligation by approximately $2 million. With respect to the
postretirement medical plan covering all other associates, there is limited risk to the Company for
increases in health care costs since, beginning in 2001, new retirees have assumed the full expected costs
and then-existing retirees have assumed all increases in such costs.
The Company expects to record postretirement income of approximately $4 million and pension expense
of approximately $17 million in 2012.
Income Taxes
In accordance with GAAP, deferred tax assets are recognized for tax credit and net operating loss
carryforwards, reduced by a valuation allowance, which is established when it is more likely than not that
some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. Management is required to estimate
taxable income for future years by taxing jurisdiction and to use its judgment to determine whether or not
to record a valuation allowance for part or all of a deferred tax asset. Estimates of taxable income are based
upon the Company’s strategic long-range plans. A one percent change in the Company’s overall statutory
tax rate for 2011 would have resulted in a $7 million change in the carrying value of the net deferred tax
asset and a corresponding charge or credit to income tax expense depending on whether the tax rate
change was a decrease or an increase.
The Company has operations in multiple taxing jurisdictions and is subject to audit in these jurisdictions.
Tax audits by their nature are often complex and can require several years to resolve. Accruals of tax
contingencies require management to make estimates and judgments with respect to the ultimate outcome
of tax audits. Actual results could vary from these estimates.
The Company expects its 2012 effective tax rate to approximate 37 percent. The actual rate will vary
depending primarily on the percentage of the Company’s income earned in the United States as compared
with its international operations.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements
In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-08, Testing Goodwill for Impairment, that is effective in
2012. The revised standard is intended to reduce cost and complexity of the annual goodwill impairment
test by providing entities an option to perform a qualitative assessment to determine whether further
impairment testing is necessary. We do not believe that the adoption of this ASU will have a significant
effect on our results of operations or financial position.
Other recently issued accounting pronouncements did not, or are not believed by management to, have a
material effect on the Company’s present or future consolidated financial statements.
Disclosure Regarding Forward-Looking Statements
This report contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the federal securities laws. Other
than statements of historical facts, all statements which address activities, events, or developments that
the Company anticipates will or may occur in the future, including, but not limited to, such things as future
capital expenditures, expansion, strategic plans, financial objectives, dividend payments, stock
repurchases, growth of the Company’s business and operations, including future cash flows, revenues, and
earnings, and other such matters, are forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are
based on many assumptions and factors which are detailed in the Company’s filings with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, including the effects of currency fluctuations, customer demand, fashion trends,
competitive market forces, uncertainties related to the effect of competitive products and pricing,
customer acceptance of the Company’s merchandise mix and retail locations, the Company’s reliance on a
few key vendors for a majority of its merchandise purchases (including a significant portion from one key
vendor), pandemics and similar major health concerns, unseasonable weather, further deterioration of
global financial markets, economic conditions worldwide, further deterioration of business and economic
conditions, any changes in business, political and economic conditions due to the threat of future terrorist
activities in the United States or in other parts of the world and related U.S. military action overseas, the
ability of the Company to execute its business and strategic plans effectively with regard to each of its
business units, and risks associated with global product sourcing, including political instability, changes in
import regulations, and disruptions to transportation services and distribution.
For additional discussion on risks and uncertainties that may affect forward-looking statements, see ‘‘Risk
Factors’’ in Part I, Item 1A. Any changes in such assumptions or factors could produce significantly
different results. The Company undertakes no obligation to update forward-looking statements, whether
as a result of new information, future events, or otherwise.
Item 7A.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Information regarding foreign exchange risk management is included in the Financial Instruments and Risk
Management note under ‘‘Item 8. Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.’’
Item 8.

Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
The Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Foot Locker, Inc.:
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Foot Locker, Inc. and subsidiaries as of
January 28, 2012 and January 29, 2011, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
comprehensive income, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period
ended January 28, 2012. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based
on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Foot Locker, Inc. and subsidiaries as of January 28, 2012 and
January 29, 2011, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the
three-year period ended January 28, 2012, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles.
We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), Foot Locker, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of January 28, 2012,
based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission, and our report dated March 26, 2012 expressed
an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

New York, New York
March 26, 2012
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FOOT LOCKER, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
2011
2010
2009
(in millions, except per share amounts)

Sales
Cost of sales
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Impairment and other charges
Interest expense, net
Other income
Income from continuing operations before income taxes
Income tax expense
Income from continuing operations

$5,623
3,827
1,244
110
5
6
(4)
5,188
435
157
278

$5,049
3,533
1,138
106
10
9
(4)
4,792
257
88
169

$4,854
3,522
1,099
112
41
10
(3)
4,781
73
26
47

Income on disposal of discontinued operations, net of
income tax benefit of $—, $—, and $1, respectively
Net income

—
$ 278

—
$ 169

$

Basic earnings per share:
Income from continuing operations
Income from discontinued operations
Net income

$ 1.81
—
$ 1.81

$ 1.08
—
$ 1.08

$ 0.30
—
$ 0.30

Diluted earnings per share:
Income from continuing operations
Income from discontinued operations
Net income

$ 1.80
—
$ 1.80

$ 1.07
—
$ 1.07

$ 0.30
—
$ 0.30

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
2011

Net income
Other comprehensive income, net of tax

$278

Foreign currency translation adjustment:
Translation adjustment arising during the period, net of tax
Cash flow hedges:
Change in fair value of derivatives, net of income tax
Pension and postretirement adjustments:
Net actuarial gain (loss) and prior service cost arising during
the year, net of income tax benefits of $11, $1, and $4 million,
respectively
Amortization of net actuarial gain/loss and prior service cost
included in net periodic benefit costs, net of income tax
expense of $3, $3, and $2 million, respectively
Available for sale securities:
Unrealized gain
Comprehensive income

2010
(in millions)

$169

$ 48

(23)

11

65

(2)

1

(2)

(16)

7

(12)

6

8

4

—

—

3

$243

$196

$106

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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FOOT LOCKER, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
2011

2010
(in millions)

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Merchandise inventories
Other current assets
Property and equipment, net
Deferred taxes
Goodwill
Other intangible assets, net
Other assets

$ 851
1,069
159
2,079
427
284
144
54
62
$3,050

$ 696
1,059
179
1,934
386
296
145
72
63
$2,896

$ 240
308
548
135
257
940
2,110
$3,050

$ 223
266
489
137
245
871
2,025
$2,896

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued and other liabilities
Long-term debt
Other liabilities
Total liabilities
Shareholders’ equity

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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FOOT LOCKER, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Additional Paid-In
Capital &
Common Stock
Shares
Amount

Balance at January 31, 2009
Restricted stock issued
Issued under director and stock plans
Share-based compensation expense
Forfeitures of restricted stock
Shares of common stock used to satisfy
tax withholding obligations
Acquired in exchange of stock options
Net income
Cash dividends declared on common
stock ($0.60 per share)
Translation adjustment, net of tax
Change in cash flow hedges, net of tax
Pension and post-retirement
adjustments, net of tax
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale
securities, with no tax expense
Balance at January 30, 2010
Restricted stock issued
Issued under director and stock plans
Share-based compensation expense
Total tax benefit from exercise of
options
Forfeitures of restricted stock
Shares of common stock used to satisfy
tax withholding obligations
Acquired in exchange of stock options
Share repurchases
Reissued under employee stock
purchase plan
Net income
Cash dividends declared on common
stock ($0.60 per share)
Translation adjustment, net of tax
Change in cash flow hedges, net of tax
Pension and post-retirement
adjustments, net of tax
Balance at January 29, 2011
Restricted stock issued
Issued under director and stock plans
Share-based compensation expense
Total tax benefit from exercise of
options
Forfeitures of restricted stock
Shares of common stock used to satisfy
tax withholding obligations
Acquired in exchange of stock options
Share repurchases
Reissued under employee stock
purchase plan
Net income
Cash dividends declared on common
stock ($0.66 per share)
Translation adjustment, net of tax
Change in cash flow hedges, net of tax
Pension and post-retirement
adjustments, net of tax
Balance at January 28, 2012

Accumulated
Other
Total
Treasury Stock
Retained Comprehensive Shareholders’
Shares
Amount
Earnings
Loss
Equity
(shares in thousands, amounts in millions)

159,599
1,004
664
—
—

$691
—
6
12
—

(4,681)
—
—
—
(10)

$(102)
—
—
—
—

—
—

—
—

(32)
(3)

(1)
—

$1,581

$(246)

(1)
—
48

48
(94)

161,267
205
1,187
—

$709
—
10
13

(4,726)
—
—
—

—
—

2
1

—
(50)

—
—
—

—
—
—

(292)
(34)
(3,215)

—

—

278

$(103)
—
—
—

$1,535

65
(2)

(94)
65
(2)

(13)

(13)

3
$(193)

—
—

2
1

(4)
(1)
(50)

(4)
(1)
(50)

6

6
169

(93)
11
1
$735
—
19
18

(8,039)
—
—
—

—
—

6
1

—
(60)

—
—
—

—
—
—

(140)
(34)
(4,904)

—

—

336

$(152)
—
—
—

$1,611

12
$(169)

—
—
(3)
(1)
(104)

(12,841)

7

$(253)

$1,788

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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12
$2,025
—
19
18

(3)
(1)
(104)
7
278

(101)

$779

(93)
11
1

6
1

278

164,460

3
$1,948
10
13

169

162,659
242
1,559
—

$1,924
—
6
12
—

(23)
(2)

(101)
(23)
(2)

(10)
$(204)

(10)
$2,110

FOOT LOCKER, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
2011

From Operating Activities
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities of continuing operations:
Discontinued operations, net of tax
Non-cash impairment and other charges
Depreciation and amortization
Share-based compensation expense
Deferred tax provision
Qualified pension plan contributions
Change in assets and liabilities:
Merchandise inventories
Accounts payable
Accrued and other liabilities
Income tax receivables and payables
Payment on the settlement of the net investment hedge
Proceeds from the termination of interest rate swaps
Other, net
Net cash provided by operating activities of continuing
operations
From Investing Activities
Gain from lease terminations
Gain from insurance recoveries
Sales of short-term investments
Capital expenditures
Net cash used in investing activities of continuing operations

$ 278

2010
(in millions)

$ 169

2009

$ 48

—
5
110
18
29
(28)

—
10
106
13
84
(32)

(1)
36
112
12
2
(100)

(17)
19
38
24
—
—
21

(19)
7
35
(33)
(24)
—
10

111
23
(30)
27
—
19
87

497

326

346

2
1
—
(152)
(149)

1
—
9
(97)
(87)

—
1
16
(89)
(72)

—
(101)
18
(104)
4
5
(178)

—
(93)
10
(50)
3
3
(127)

(3)
(94)
3
—
—
—
(94)

From Financing Activities
Reduction in long-term debt
Dividends paid on common stock
Issuance of common stock
Purchase of treasury shares
Treasury stock reissued under employee stock plan
Excess tax benefits on share-based compensation
Net cash used in financing activities of continuing operations
Effect of Exchange Rate Fluctuations on Cash and Cash
Equivalents
Net Cash used by Discontinued Operations
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

(15)
—
155
696
$ 851

2
—
114
582
$ 696

18
(1)
197
385
$ 582

Cash Paid During the Year:
Interest
Income taxes

$ 12
$ 143

$ 12
$ 53

$ 12
$ 19

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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FOOT LOCKER, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Foot Locker, Inc. and its domestic and
international subsidiaries (the ‘‘Company’’), all of which are wholly owned. All significant intercompany
amounts have been eliminated. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles (‘‘GAAP’’) requires management to make estimates and assumptions
relating to the reporting of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the
financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results may differ from those estimates.
Reporting Year
The reporting period for the Company is the Saturday closest to the last day in January. Fiscal years 2011,
2010, and 2009 represent the 52 week periods ending January 28, 2012, January 29, 2011, and
January 30, 2010, respectively. References to years in this annual report relate to fiscal years rather than
calendar years.
Revenue Recognition
Revenue from retail stores is recognized at the point of sale when the product is delivered to customers.
Internet and catalog sales revenue is recognized upon estimated receipt by the customer. Sales include
shipping and handling fees for all periods presented. Sales include merchandise, net of returns, and
exclude taxes. The Company provides for estimated returns based on return history and sales levels.
Revenue from layaway sales is recognized when the customer receives the product, rather than when the
initial deposit is paid.
Gift Cards
The Company sells gift cards to its customers, which do not have expiration dates. Revenue from gift card
sales is recorded when the gift cards are redeemed or when the likelihood of the gift card being redeemed
by the customer is remote and there is no legal obligation to remit the value of unredeemed gift cards to
the relevant jurisdictions, referred to as breakage. The Company has determined its gift card breakage rate
based upon historical redemption patterns. Historical experience indicates that after 12 months the
likelihood of redemption is deemed to be remote. Gift card breakage income is included in selling, general
and administrative expenses and totaled $4 million, $2 million, and $4 million in 2011, 2010, and 2009,
respectively. Unredeemed gift cards are recorded as a current liability.
Statement of Cash Flows
The Company has selected to present the operations of the discontinued businesses as one line in the
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. For all the periods presented this caption includes only operating
activities.
Store Pre-Opening and Closing Costs
Store pre-opening costs are charged to expense as incurred. In the event a store is closed before its lease
has expired, the estimated post-closing lease exit costs, less the sublease rental income, is provided for
once the store ceases to be used.
Advertising Costs and Sales Promotion
Advertising and sales promotion costs are expensed at the time the advertising or promotion takes place,
net of reimbursements for cooperative advertising. Advertising expenses also include advertising costs as
required by some of the Company’s mall-based leases. Cooperative advertising reimbursements earned for
the launch and promotion of certain products agreed upon with vendors is recorded in the same period as
the associated expenses are incurred.
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1.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies − (continued)

Reimbursement received in excess of expenses incurred related to specific, incremental, and identifiable
advertising costs, is accounted for as a reduction to the cost of merchandise, which is reflected in cost of
sales as the merchandise is sold.
Advertising costs, which are included as a component of selling, general and administrative expenses, were
as follows:

Advertising expenses
Cooperative advertising reimbursements
Net advertising expense

2011

2010
(in millions)

2009

$121
(22)
$ 99

$ 97
(23)
$ 74

$ 94
(25)
$ 69

Catalog Costs
Catalog costs, which primarily comprise paper, printing, and postage, are capitalized and amortized over
the expected customer response period related to each catalog, which is generally 90 days. Cooperative
reimbursements earned for the promotion of certain products are agreed upon with vendors and are
recorded in the same period as the associated catalog expenses are amortized. Prepaid catalog costs
totaled $3 million and $4 million at January 28, 2012 and January 29, 2011, respectively.
Catalog costs, which are included as a component of selling, general and administrative expenses, were
as follows:
2011

Catalog costs
Cooperative reimbursements
Net catalog expense

$
$

44
(5)
39

2010
(in millions)

$
$

45
(5)
40

2009

$
$

48
(4)
44

Earnings Per Share
The Company accounts for and discloses earnings per share using the treasury stock method. Basic
earnings per share is computed by dividing reported net income for the period by the weighted-average
number of common shares outstanding at the end of the period. Restricted stock awards, which contain
non-forfeitable rights to dividends, are considered participating securities and are included in the
calculation of basic earnings per share. Diluted earnings per share reflects the weighted-average number
of common shares outstanding during the period used in the basic earnings per share computation plus
dilutive common stock equivalents. The computation of basic and diluted earnings per share is as follows:
2011
2010
2009
(in millions, except per share data)

Net income from continuing operations
Weighted-average common shares outstanding
Basic Earnings per share from continuing operations
Weighted-average common shares outstanding
Dilutive effect of potential common shares
Weighted-average common shares outstanding
assuming dilution
Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations

40

$ 278
153.0
$ 1.81
153.0
1.4

$ 169
155.7
$ 1.08
155.7
1.0

$ 47
156.0
$ 0.30
156.0
0.3

154.4
$ 1.80

156.7
$ 1.07

156.3
$ 0.30

FOOT LOCKER, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies − (continued)

Potential common shares include the dilutive effect of stock options and restricted stock units. Options to
purchase 3.8 million, 4.5 million, and 6.3 million shares of common stock at January 28, 2012,
January 29, 2011, and January 30, 2010, respectively, were not included in the computations because the
exercise price of the options was greater than the average market price of the common shares and,
therefore, the effect of their inclusion would be antidilutive. Contingently issuable shares of 0.9 million
have not been included as the vesting conditions have not been satisfied.
Share-Based Compensation
The Company recognizes compensation expense in the financial statements for share-based awards based
on the grant date fair value of those awards. Additionally, stock-based compensation expense includes an
estimate for pre-vesting forfeitures and is recognized over the requisite service periods of the awards. See
Note 21, Share-Based Compensation, for information on the assumptions the Company used to calculate the
fair value of share-based compensation.
Upon exercise of stock options, issuance of restricted stock or units, or issuance of shares under the
employees stock purchase plan, the Company will issue authorized but unissued common stock or use
common stock held in treasury. The Company may make repurchases of its common stock from time to
time, subject to legal and contractual restrictions, market conditions, and other factors.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash equivalents at January 28, 2012 and January 29, 2011 were $830 million and $675 million,
respectively. Included in these amounts are $191 million and $165 million of short-term deposits as of
January 28, 2012 and January 29, 2011, respectively. The Company considers all highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less, including commercial paper and money market funds, to
be cash equivalents. Additionally, amounts due from third party credit card processors for the settlement
of debit and credit card transactions are included as cash equivalents as they are generally collected within
three business days.
Investments
Changes in the fair value of available-for-sale securities are reported as a component of accumulated other
comprehensive loss in the Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity and are not reflected in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations until a sale transaction occurs or when declines in fair value are
deemed to be other-than-temporary. The Company routinely reviews available-for-sale securities for
other-than-temporary declines in fair value below the cost basis, and when events or changes in
circumstances indicate the carrying value of a security may not be recoverable, the security is written
down to fair value. The Company’s auction rate security was valued at $5 million for both January 28, 2012
and January 29, 2011. See Note 19, Fair Value Measurements, for further discussion of these investments.
Merchandise Inventories and Cost of Sales
Merchandise inventories for the Company’s Athletic Stores are valued at the lower of cost or market using
the retail inventory method. Cost for retail stores is determined on the last-in, first-out (‘‘LIFO’’) basis for
domestic inventories and on the first-in, first-out (‘‘FIFO’’) basis for international inventories. The retail
inventory method is commonly used by retail companies to value inventories at cost and calculate gross
margins due to its practicality. Under the retail inventory method, cost is determined by applying a
cost-to-retail percentage across groupings of similar items, known as departments. The cost-to-retail
percentage is applied to ending inventory at its current owned retail valuation to determine the cost of
ending inventory on a department basis. The Company provides reserves based on current selling prices
when the inventory has not been marked down to market. Merchandise inventories of the
Direct-to-Customers business are valued at the lower of cost or market using weighted-average cost, which
approximates FIFO. Transportation, distribution center, and sourcing costs are capitalized in merchandise
inventories. The Company expenses the freight associated with transfers between its store locations in the
period incurred. The Company maintains an accrual for shrinkage based on historical rates.
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Cost of sales is comprised of the cost of merchandise, occupancy, buyers’ compensation, and shipping and
handling costs. The cost of merchandise is recorded net of amounts received from vendors for damaged
product returns, markdown allowances, and volume rebates, as well as cooperative advertising
reimbursements received in excess of specific, incremental advertising expenses. Occupancy includes the
amortization of amounts received from landlords for tenant improvements.
Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are recorded at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Significant
additions and improvements to property and equipment are capitalized. Maintenance and repairs are
charged to current operations as incurred. Major renewals or replacements that substantially extend the
useful life of an asset are capitalized and depreciated. Owned property and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets: maximum of 50 years for buildings and 3 to
10 years for furniture, fixtures, and equipment. Property and equipment under capital leases and
improvements to leased premises are generally amortized on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
estimated useful life of the asset or the remaining lease term. Capitalized software reflects certain costs
related to software developed for internal use that are capitalized and amortized. After substantial
completion of a project, the costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over a 2 to 7 year period.
Capitalized software, net of accumulated amortization, is included as a component of property and
equipment and was $27 million at both January 28, 2012 and January 29, 2011.
Recoverability of Long-Lived Assets
The Company recognizes impairment losses whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amounts of long-lived tangible and intangible assets with finite lives may not be recoverable.
Management’s policy in determining whether an impairment indicator exists, a triggering event, comprises
measurable operating performance criteria at the division level, as well as qualitative measures. The
Company considers historical performance and future estimated results, which are predominately
identified from the Company’s strategic long-range plans, in its evaluation of potential store-level
impairment and then compares the carrying amount of the asset with the estimated future cash flows
expected to result from the use of the asset. If the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the estimated
expected undiscounted future cash flows, the Company measures the amount of the impairment by
comparing the carrying amount of the asset with its estimated fair value. The estimation of fair value is
measured by discounting expected future cash flows at the Company’s weighted-average cost of capital.
The Company estimates fair value based on the best information available using estimates, judgments, and
projections as considered necessary.
Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets
The Company reviews goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives for impairment annually during
the first quarter of its fiscal year or more frequently if impairment indicators arise. The fair value of each
reporting unit is determined using a combination of market and discounted cash flow approaches.
Derivative Financial Instruments
All derivative financial instruments are recorded in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets at their
fair values. For derivatives designated as a hedge, and effective as part of a hedge transaction, the effective
portion of the gain or loss on the hedging derivative instrument is reported as a component of other
comprehensive income/loss or as a basis adjustment to the underlying hedged item and reclassified to
earnings in the period in which the hedged item affects earnings. The effective portion of the gain or loss
on hedges of foreign net investments is generally not reclassified to earnings unless the net investment is
disposed of.
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To the extent derivatives do not qualify or are not designated as hedges, or are ineffective, their changes in
fair value are recorded in earnings immediately, which may subject the Company to increased
earnings volatility.
Fair Value
The Company categorizes its financial instruments into a three-level fair value hierarchy that prioritizes
the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value into three broad levels. The fair value
hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
(Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3). If the inputs used to measure fair value
fall within different levels of the hierarchy, the category level is based on the lowest priority level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement of the instrument. Fair value is determined based upon the
exit price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants exclusive of any transaction costs.
The Company’s financial assets recorded at fair value are categorized as follows:
Level 1 − Quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets.
Level 2 − Quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets; quoted prices for identical or
similar instruments in markets that are not active; and model-derived valuations in which all
significant inputs or significant value-drivers are observable in active markets.
Level 3 − Model-derived valuations in which one or more significant inputs or significant
value-drivers are unobservable.
Income Taxes
The Company determines its deferred tax provision under the liability method, under which deferred tax
assets and liabilities are recognized for the expected tax consequences of temporary differences between
the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their reported amounts using presently enacted tax rates.
Deferred tax assets are recognized for tax credits and net operating loss carryforwards, reduced by a
valuation allowance, which is established when it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the
deferred tax assets will not be realized. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax
rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date.
A taxing authority may challenge positions that the Company adopted in its income tax filings. Accordingly,
the Company may apply different tax treatments for transactions in filing its income tax returns than for
income tax financial reporting. The Company regularly assesses its tax positions for such transactions and
records reserves for those differences when considered necessary. Tax positions are recognized only when
it is more likely than not, based on technical merits, that the positions will be sustained upon examination.
Tax positions that meet the more-likely-than-not threshold are measured using a probability weighted
approach as the largest amount of tax benefit that is greater than fifty percent likely of being realized upon
settlement. Whether the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold is met for a tax position is a matter of
judgment based on the individual facts and circumstances of that position evaluated in light of all available
evidence. The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits within
income tax expense in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations. Accrued interest and
penalties are included within the related tax liability line in the consolidated balance sheet.
Provision for U.S. income taxes on undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries is made only on those
amounts in excess of the funds considered to be permanently reinvested.
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Pension and Postretirement Obligations
In 2011, the Company changed how the discount rate was selected to measure the present value of U.S.
benefit obligations from the Citibank Pension Discount curve to Towers Watson’s Bond:Link model. The
current discount rate is determined by reference to the Bond:Link interest rate model based upon a
portfolio of highly rated U.S. corporate bonds with individual bonds that are theoretically purchased to
settle the plan’s anticipated cash outflows. The cash flows are discounted to their present value and an
overall discount rate is determined. The discount rate selected to measure the present value of the
Company’s Canadian benefit obligations was developed by using the plan’s bond portfolio indices, which
match the benefit obligations.
Insurance Liabilities
The Company is primarily self-insured for health care, workers’ compensation, and general liability costs.
Accordingly, provisions are made for the Company’s actuarially determined estimates of discounted future
claim costs for such risks, for the aggregate of claims reported and claims incurred but not yet reported.
Self-insured liabilities totaled $14 million and $15 million at January 28, 2012 and January 29, 2011,
respectively. The Company discounts its workers’ compensation and general liability reserves using a
risk-free interest rate. Imputed interest expense related to these liabilities was not significant for 2011,
2010, and 2009.
Accounting for Leases
The Company recognizes rent expense for operating leases as of the possession date for store leases or the
commencement of the agreement for a non-store lease. Rental expense, inclusive of rent holidays,
concessions, and tenant allowances are recognized over the lease term on a straight-line basis. Contingent
payments based upon sales and future increases determined by inflation related indices cannot be
estimated at the inception of the lease and accordingly, are charged to operations as incurred.
Foreign Currency Translation
The functional currency of the Company’s international operations is the applicable local currency. The
translation of the applicable foreign currency into U.S. dollars is performed for balance sheet accounts
using current exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date and for revenue and expense accounts
using the weighted-average rates of exchange prevailing during the year. The unearned gains and losses
resulting from such translation are included as a separate component of accumulated other comprehensive
loss within shareholders’ equity.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements
In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-08, Testing Goodwill for Impairment, that is effective in
2012. The revised standard is intended to reduce cost and complexity of the annual goodwill impairment
test by providing entities an option to perform a qualitative assessment to determine whether further
impairment testing is necessary. We do not believe that the adoption of this ASU will have a significant
effect on our results of operations or financial position.
Other recently issued accounting pronouncements did not, or are not believed by management to, have a
material effect on the Company’s present or future consolidated financial statements.
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The Company has determined that its reportable segments are those that are based on its method of
internal reporting. As of January 28, 2012, the Company has two reportable segments, Athletic Stores and
Direct-to-Customers. The accounting policies of both segments are the same as those described in the
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies note. The Company evaluates performance based on several
factors, of which the primary financial measure is division results. Division profit reflects income
from continuing operations before income taxes, corporate expense, non-operating income, and net
interest expense.
2011

Sales
Athletic Stores
Direct-to-Customers
Total sales
Operating Results
Athletic Stores(1)
Direct-to-Customers(2)
Restructuring (charge) income(3)
Division profit
Less: Corporate expense(4)
Operating profit
Other income(5)
Interest expense, net
Income from continuing operations before income taxes
(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)
(5)

2010
(in millions)

2009

$5,110
513
$5,623

$4,617
432
$5,049

$4,448
406
$4,854

$ 495
45
540
(1)
539
102
437
4
6
$ 435

$ 329
30
359
—
359
97
262
4
9
$ 257

$ 114
32
146
1
147
67
80
3
10
$ 73

The year ended January 30, 2010 includes non-cash impairment charges totaling $32 million, which were recorded to
write-down long-lived assets such as store fixtures and leasehold improvements at the Company’s Lady Foot Locker, Kids Foot
Locker, Footaction, and Champs Sports divisions.
Included in the results for the year ended January 28, 2012 and January 29, 2011 are non-cash impairment charges of $5 million
and $10 million, respectively, to write down the CCS tradename intangible asset. Included in the results for the year ended
January 30, 2010 is a non-cash impairment charge of $4 million to write off software development costs.
During the first quarter of 2011, the Company increased its 1993 Repositioning and 1991 Restructuring reserve by $1 million
for repairs necessary to one of the locations comprising this reserve. During the year ended January 30, 2010, the Company
adjusted its 1999 restructuring reserves to reflect a favorable lease termination. These amounts are included in selling, general,
and administrative expenses.
During 2009, the Company restructured its organization by consolidating the Lady Foot Locker, Foot Locker U.S., Kids Foot
Locker, and Footaction businesses in addition to reducing corporate staff, resulting in a $5 million charge.
Other income includes non-operating items, such as gains from insurance recoveries, gains on the repurchase and retirement of
bonds, royalty income, the changes in fair value, premiums paid and realized gains associated with foreign currency option
contracts. Included in the year ended January 29, 2011 is a $2 million gain to reflect the Company’s settlement of its investment
in the Reserve International Liquidity Fund.
Depreciation and
Amortization
2011
2010
2009

Athletic Stores
Direct-to-Customers
Corporate
Total Company

$ 90
9
99
11
$110

$ 85
9
94
12
$106

$ 90
9
99
13
$112

Capital Expenditures
2011
2010
2009
(in millions)

$117
6
123
29
$152
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$72
4
76
21
$97

$70
5
75
14
$89

2011

$2,065
284
2,349
701
$3,050

Total Assets
2010

$1,993
280
2,273
623
$2,896

2009

$1,875
289
2,164
652
$2,816

FOOT LOCKER, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2.

Segment Information − (continued)

Sales and long-lived asset information by geographic area as of and for the fiscal years ended
January 28, 2012, January 29, 2011, and January 30, 2010 are presented in the following table. Sales are
attributed to the country in which the sales originate, which is where the legal subsidiary is domiciled.
Long-lived assets reflect property and equipment.
2011

Sales
United States
International
Total sales

$3,959
1,664
$5,623

2010
(in millions)

$3,568
1,481
$5,049

2009

$3,425
1,429
$4,854

The Company’s sales in Italy, Canada, and France represent approximately 23, 18, and 15 percent,
respectively, of the International category’s sales for the period ended January 28, 2012. No other
individual country included in the International category is significant.
2011

Long-Lived Assets
United States
International
Total long-lived assets
3.

$285
142
$427

2010
(in millions)

$257
129
$386

2009

$266
121
$387

Impairment and Other Charges
2011

Impairment of intangible assets
Impairment of assets
Reorganization costs
Total impairment and other charges

$

5
—
—
$ 5

2010
(in millions)

$

$

10
—
—
10

2009

$

—
36
5
$ 41

Impairment of Intangible Assets
Intangible assets that are determined to have finite lives are amortized over their useful lives and are
measured for impairment only when events or circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. Intangible assets with indefinite lives are tested for impairment if impairment indicators arise
and, at a minimum, annually. During the fourth quarters of 2011 and 2010, the Company determined that
triggering events had occurred related to its CCS intangible assets, which is part of the Direct-to-Customers
segment, reflecting decreases in projected revenues. Accordingly, a charge of $5 million and $10 million
was recorded to write-down the CCS tradename for 2011 and 2010, respectively. The fair value was
determined using an income approach using the relief-from-royalty method.
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Impairment and Other Charges − (continued)

Impairment of Assets
No impairment charges related to long-lived assets were recorded during 2011 or 2010. During 2009, the
Company recorded non-cash impairment charges totaling $36 million; $32 million was recorded to
write-down long-lived assets at its Lady Foot Locker, Kids Foot Locker, Footaction, and Champs Sports
divisions, and a $4 million charge was recorded to write off certain software development costs for the
Direct-to-Customers segment as a result of management’s decision to terminate the project.
Reorganization Costs
In 2009, the Company consolidated the management team of the Lady Foot Locker business with the team
that managed the Foot Locker U.S., Kids Foot Locker, and Footaction businesses. As a result of this
divisional reorganization, as well as certain corporate staff reductions taken to improve corporate
efficiency, the Company recorded a charge of $5 million. This charge was comprised primarily of severance
costs to eliminate approximately 120 positions.
4.

Other Income

Other income reflects non-operating income and includes items such as royalty income from the
Company’s franchising agreements, lease termination gains, realized gains/losses and premiums
associated with foreign currency option contracts, gains on the purchase and retirement of bonds, and
other non-operating items. Other income was $4 million in both 2011 and 2010 and was $3 million in
2009.
For 2011, other income primarily includes $2 million of lease termination gains related to the sales of
leasehold interests, $1 million for insurance recoveries, as well as royalty income. For 2010, other income
includes a $2 million gain on its money-market investment, as well as royalty income, and gains on lease
terminations related to certain lease interests in Europe. Other income in 2009 primarily reflects
$4 million related to gains from insurance recoveries, gains on the purchase and retirement of bonds, and
royalty income, partially offset by foreign currency option contract premiums of $1 million.
5.

Merchandise Inventories
2011

LIFO inventories
FIFO inventories
Total merchandise inventories

2010
(in millions)

$ 683
386
$1,069

$ 694
365
$1,059

The value of the Company’s LIFO inventories, as calculated on a LIFO basis, approximates their value as
calculated on a FIFO basis.
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9.

Other Intangible Assets, net

($ in millions)

Amortized intangible
assets:(1),(2)
Lease acquisition costs
Trademarks
Loyalty program
Favorable leases
CCS customer relationships

Gross
value

January 28, 2012
Accum.
Net
amort.
Value

$171
21
1
7
21
$221

$(149)
(8)
(1)
(7)
(13)
$(178)

Indefinite life intangible assets:
Republic of Ireland
trademark(1)
CCS tradename(3)
Identifiable intangible assets,
net
(1)
(2)
(3)

$

22
13
—
—
8
$ 43

Wtd. Avg.
Life in
Years

11.3
19.7
—
8.4
5.0
11.4

Gross
value

$178
21
1
9
21
$230

January 29, 2011
Accum.
Net
amort.
Value

$(150)
(7)
(1)
(8)
(9)
$(175)

$

28
14
—
1
12
$ 55

1
10
$ 11

$

2
15
17

$

$

72
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Includes the effect of foreign currency translation related primarily to the movements of the euro in relation to the U.S. dollar.
Additionally, the amounts presented for each of the periods reflects accumulated impairment charges of $2 million.
The weighted-average useful life disclosed excludes those assets that are fully amortized.
The net value of the CCS tradename at January 28, 2012 and January 29, 2011 includes impairment charges of $5 million and
$10 million, respectively, as described more fully in Note 3.

Amortizing intangible assets primarily represent lease acquisition costs, which are amounts that are
required to secure prime lease locations and other lease rights, primarily in Europe. During 2011,
additions of $7 million were recorded primarily from new leases in Europe. Retirements recorded during
2011 were $3 million. Amortization expense for intangibles subject to amortization was $16 million,
$17 million, and $19 million for 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively. Estimated future amortization
expense for finite lived intangibles for the next five years is as follows:
(in millions)

2012
2013
2014
2015
2016

$ 14
9
4
3
2
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10.

Other Assets
2011

Funds deposited in insurance trust(1)
Pension asset
Auction rate security
Prepaid income taxes
Deferred tax costs
Income tax asset
Other

$

$
(1)

11.

9
8
5
4
1
1
34
62

$

10
2
5
5
3
1
37
63

Accrued and Other Liabilities

Other payroll and payroll related costs, excluding taxes
Incentive bonuses
Taxes other than income taxes
Customer deposits(1)
Current deferred tax liabilities
Property and equipment
Pension and postretirement benefits
Sales return reserve
Income taxes payable
Fair value of derivatives
Other

12.

$

The Company is required by its insurers to collateralize part of the self-insured workers’ compensation and liability claims. The
Company has chosen to satisfy these collateral requirements by depositing funds in an insurance trust.

2011

(1)

2010
(in millions)

2010
(in millions)

$ 61
55
45
30
24
22
4
4
3
2
58
$308

$ 43
48
37
29
20
19
4
4
8
—
54
$266

Customer deposits include unredeemed gift cards and certificates, merchandise credits, and deferred revenue related to
undelivered merchandise, including layaway sales.

Revolving Credit Facility

On January 27, 2012, the Company entered into an amended and restated credit agreement (the ‘‘2011
Restated Credit Agreement’’) with its banks, replacing the 2009 Credit Agreement. The 2011 Restated
Credit Agreement provides for a $200 million asset based revolving credit facility maturing on
January 27, 2017. In addition, during the term of the 2011 Restated Credit Agreement, the Company may
make up to four requests for additional credit commitments in an aggregate amount not to exceed $200
million. Interest is based on the LIBOR rate in effect at the time of the borrowing plus a 1.25 to 1.50
percent margin depending on certain provisions as defined in the 2011 Restated Credit Agreement.
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Revolving Credit Facility − (continued)

The 2011 Restated Credit Agreement provides for a security interest in certain of the Company’s domestic
assets, including certain inventory assets, but excluding intellectual property. The Company is not required
to comply with any financial covenants as long as there are no outstanding borrowings. With regard to the
payment of dividends and share repurchases, there are no restrictions if the Company is not borrowing
and the payments are funded through cash on hand. If the Company is borrowing, Availability as of the end
of each fiscal month during the subsequent projected six fiscal months following the payment must be at
least 20 percent of the lesser of the Aggregate Commitments and the Borrowing Base (as defined in the
2011 Restated Credit Agreement). The Company’s management does not currently expect to borrow under
the facility in 2012.
At January 28, 2012, the Company had unused domestic lines of credit of $199 million, while $1 million
was committed to support standby letters of credit. The letters of credit are primarily used for
insurance programs.
Deferred financing fees are amortized over the life of the facility on a straight-line basis, which is
comparable to the interest method. The unamortized balance at January 28, 2012 is $3 million.
The quarterly facility fees paid on the unused portion were 0.75 percent for both 2011 and 2010. Under
the terms of the 2011 Restated Credit Agreement, the quarterly facility fee will be 0.25 percent on the
unused portion. There were no short-term borrowings during 2011 or 2010. Interest expense, including
facility fees, related to the revolving credit facility was $4 million, $4 million, and $3 million for 2011, 2010,
and 2009, respectively.
13.

Long-Term Debt

The Company’s long-term debt reflects the Company’s 8.50 percent debentures payable in 2022, and was
$135 million and $137 million for the years ended January 28, 2012 and January 29, 2011, respectively.
Excluding the unamortized gain of the interest rate swaps of $15 million, the principal outstanding is
$120 million. The gain is being amortized as part of interest expense over the remaining term of the debt,
using the effective-yield method.
Interest expense related to long-term debt, including the effect of the interest rate swaps and the
amortization of the associated debt issuance costs, was $9 million for all years presented.
14.

Other Liabilities
2011

Straight-line rent liability
Pension benefits
Income taxes
Postretirement benefits
Workers’ compensation and general liability reserves
Deferred taxes
Other
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$

2010
(in millions)

103
70
31
14
11
5
23
$ 257

$

100
67
28
11
11
—
28
$ 245

FOOT LOCKER, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
15.

Leases

The Company is obligated under operating leases for almost all of its store properties. Some of the store
leases contain renewal options with varying terms and conditions. Management expects that in the normal
course of business, expiring leases will generally be renewed or, upon making a decision to relocate,
replaced by leases on other premises. Operating lease periods generally range from 5 to 10 years. Certain
leases provide for additional rent payments based on a percentage of store sales. Most of the Company’s
leases require the payment of certain executory costs such as insurance, maintenance, and other costs in
addition to the future minimum lease payments. These costs, including the amortization of lease rights,
totaled $130 million, $131 million, and $138 million in 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively. Included in the
amounts below, are non-store expenses that totaled $17 million in 2011 and $15 million in 2010 and 2009.

Minimum rent
Contingent rent based on sales
Sublease income

2011

2010
(in millions)

2009

$525
20
(1)
$544

$507
16
(1)
$522

$514
14
(2)
$526

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases, net of future non-cancelable
operating sublease payments, are:
(in millions)

2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
Thereafter
Total operating lease commitments
16.

$ 478
420
366
321
260
672
$2,517

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax, is comprised of the following:

Foreign currency translation adjustments
Cash flow hedges
Unrecognized pension cost and postretirement benefit
Unrealized loss on available-for-sale security
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2011

2010
(in millions)

2009

$ 63
(1)
(264)
(2)
$(204)

$ 86
1
(254)
(2)
$(169)

$ 75
—
(266)
(2)
$(193)
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17.

Income Taxes

Following are the domestic and international components of pre-tax income from continuing operations:
2011

Domestic
International
Total pre-tax income

$321
114
$435

2010
(in millions)

$158
99
$257

2009

$(23)
96
$ 73

The income tax provision consists of the following:

Current:
Federal
State and local
International
Total current tax provision
Deferred:
Federal
State and local
International
Total deferred tax provision
Total income tax provision

2011

2010
(in millions)

2009

$ 93
11
24
128

$(28)
4
28
4

$ (6)
—
30
24

16
6
7
29
$157

79
4
1
84
$ 88

(3)
—
5
2
$26

Provision has been made in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations for additional
income taxes applicable to dividends received or expected to be received from international subsidiaries.
The amount of unremitted earnings of international subsidiaries for which no such tax is provided and
which is considered to be permanently reinvested in the subsidiaries totaled $771 million and
$679 million at January 28, 2012 and January 29, 2011, respectively. The determination of the amount of
the deferred tax liability related to permanently reinvested earnings is not practicable.
A reconciliation of the significant differences between the federal statutory income tax rate and the
effective income tax rate on pre-tax income from continuing operations is as follows:

Federal statutory income tax rate
State and local income taxes, net of federal tax benefit
International income taxed at varying rates
Foreign tax credits
Decrease in valuation allowance
Domestic/foreign tax settlements
Federal tax credits
Canadian tax rate changes
Other, net
Effective income tax rate

53

2011

2010

2009

35.0%
3.1
(0.3)
(1.3)
—
0.3
(0.6)
—
(0.2)
36.0%

35.0%
2.3
1.0
(2.0)
(0.4)
(2.3)
(0.7)
—
1.4
34.3%

35.0%
0.2
1.3
(7.4)
—
(2.8)
(2.0)
6.0
5.7
36.0%
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Income Taxes − (continued)

Deferred income taxes are provided for the effects of temporary differences between the amounts of assets
and liabilities recognized for financial reporting purposes and the amounts recognized for income tax
purposes. Items that give rise to significant portions of the Company’s deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities are as follows:
2011

Deferred tax assets:
Tax loss/credit carryforwards and capital loss
Employee benefits
Property and equipment
Straight-line rent
Goodwill and other intangible assets
Other
Total deferred tax assets
Valuation allowance
Total deferred tax assets, net
Deferred tax liabilities:
Inventories
Other
Total deferred tax liabilities
Net deferred tax asset
Balance Sheet caption reported in:
Deferred taxes
Other current assets
Accrued and other current liabilities
Other liabilities

2010
(in millions)

$ 18
77
166
27
21
32
341
(5)
336

$ 31
67
173
27
23
32
353
(6)
347

71
8
79
$257

63
6
69
$278

$284
2
(24)
(5)
$257

$296
2
(20)
—
$278

The Company operates in multiple taxing jurisdictions and is subject to audit. Audits can involve complex
issues that may require an extended period of time to resolve. A taxing authority may challenge positions
that the Company has adopted in its income tax filings. Accordingly, the Company may apply different tax
treatments for transactions in filing its income tax returns than for income tax financial reporting. The
Company regularly assesses its tax positions for such transactions and records reserves for those
differences.
The Company’s U.S. Federal income tax filings have been examined by the Internal Revenue Service
through 2010. The Company is participating in the IRS’s Compliance Assurance Process (‘‘CAP’’) for 2011,
which is expected to conclude during 2012. The Company has started the CAP for 2012. Due to the recent
utilization of net operating loss carryforwards, the Company is subject to state and local tax examinations
effectively including years from 1996 to the present. To date, no adjustments have been proposed in any
audits that will have a material effect on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.
As of January 28, 2012, the Company has a valuation allowance of $5 million to reduce its deferred tax
assets to an amount that is more likely than not to be realized. The valuation allowance primarily relates to
the deferred tax assets arising from a capital loss associated with the 2008 impairment of the Northern
Group note receivable, state tax loss carryforwards, and state tax credits. A full valuation allowance is
required for the capital loss because the Company does not anticipate realizing capital gains to utilize this
loss. The valuation allowance for state tax loss and credit carryforwards decreased in 2011 principally due
to anticipated expirations of those attributes.
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Income Taxes − (continued)

Based upon the level of historical taxable income and projections for future taxable income, which are
based upon the Company’s strategic long-range plans, over the periods in which the temporary differences
are anticipated to reverse, management believes it is more likely than not that the Company will realize the
benefits of these deductible differences, net of the valuation allowances at January 28, 2012. However, the
amount of the deferred tax asset considered realizable could be adjusted in the future if estimates of
taxable income are revised.
At January 28, 2012, the Company has state operating loss carryforwards with a potential tax benefit of
$11 million that expire between 2012 and 2030. The Company will have, when realized, a capital loss with
a potential benefit of $3 million arising from a note receivable. This loss will carryforward for 5 years after
realization. The Company has U.S. state and Canadian provincial credit carryforwards that total $2 million,
expiring between 2012 and 2021. The Company has international operating loss carryforwards with a
potential tax benefit of $2 million, expiring between 2012 and 2031.
At January 28, 2012 and January 29, 2011, the Company had $65 million and $62 million, respectively of
gross unrecognized tax benefits, and $64 million and $61 million, respectively, of net unrecognized tax
benefits that would, if recognized, affect the Company’s annual effective tax rate. The Company has
classified certain income tax liabilities as current or noncurrent based on management’s estimate of when
these liabilities will be settled. Interest expense and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits are
classified as income tax expense. The Company recognized $1 million of interest expense in each of 2011,
2010, and 2009. The total amount of accrued interest and penalties was $4 million, $3 million, and
$5 million in 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively.
The following table summarizes the activity related to unrecognized tax benefits:
2011

Unrecognized tax benefits at beginning of year
Foreign currency translation adjustments
Increases related to current year tax positions
Increases related to prior period tax positions
Decreases related to prior period tax positions
Settlements
Lapse of statute of limitations
Unrecognized tax benefits at end of year

$

62
(1)
7
1
—
(3)
(1)
$ 65

2010
(in millions)

$

70
3
4
3
(7)
(9)
(2)
$ 62

2009

$

58
6
4
4
(2)
—
—
$ 70

It is reasonably possible that the liability associated with the Company’s unrecognized tax benefits will
increase or decrease within the next twelve months. These changes may be the result of foreign currency
fluctuations, ongoing audits or the expiration of statutes of limitations. Settlements could increase earnings
in an amount ranging from $0 to $5 million based on current estimates. Audit outcomes and the timing of
audit settlements are subject to significant uncertainty. Although management believes that adequate
provision has been made for such issues, the ultimate resolution of these issues could have an adverse
effect on the earnings of the Company. Conversely, if these issues are resolved favorably in the future, the
related provision would be reduced, generating a positive effect on earnings. Due to the uncertainty of
amounts and in accordance with its accounting policies, the Company has not recorded any potential
impact of these settlements.
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Financial Instruments and Risk Management

The Company operates internationally and utilizes certain derivative financial instruments to mitigate its
foreign currency exposures, primarily related to third party and intercompany forecasted transactions. As
a result of the use of derivative instruments, the Company is exposed to the risk that counterparties will
fail to meet their contractual obligations. To mitigate the counterparty credit risk, the Company has a
policy of entering into contracts only with major financial institutions selected based upon their credit
ratings and other financial factors. The Company monitors the creditworthiness of counterparties
throughout the duration of the derivative instrument. Additional information is contained within Note 19,
Fair Value Measurements.
Derivative Holdings Designated as Hedges
For a derivative to qualify as a hedge at inception and throughout the hedged period, the Company
formally documents the nature of the hedged items and the relationships between the hedging
instruments and the hedged items, as well as its risk-management objectives, strategies for undertaking
the various hedge transactions, and the methods of assessing hedge effectiveness and hedge
ineffectiveness. In addition, for hedges of forecasted transactions, the significant characteristics and
expected terms of the forecasted transaction must be specifically identified, and it must be probable that
each forecasted transaction will occur. If it were deemed probable that the forecasted transaction would
not occur, the gain or loss would be recognized in earnings immediately. No such gains or losses were
recognized in earnings for any of the periods presented. Derivative financial instruments qualifying for
hedge accounting must maintain a specified level of effectiveness between the hedging instrument and
the item being hedged, both at inception and throughout the hedged period, which management
evaluates periodically.
The primary currencies to which the Company is exposed are the euro, British pound, Canadian dollar, and
Australian dollar. For option and forward foreign exchange contracts designated as cash flow hedges of the
purchase of inventory, the effective portion of gains and losses is deferred as a component of Accumulated
Other Comprehensive Loss (‘‘AOCL’’) and is recognized as a component of cost of sales when the related
inventory is sold. The amount reclassified to cost of sales related to such contracts was not significant for
any of the periods presented. The ineffective portion of gains and losses related to cash flow hedges
recorded to earnings was also not significant for any of the periods presented. When using a forward
contract as a hedging instrument, the Company excludes the time value from the assessment of
effectiveness. The Company had not hedged forecasted transactions for more than the next twelve months,
and the Company expects all derivative-related amounts reported in AOCL to be reclassified to earnings
within twelve months. During 2011, the net changes in the fair value of the contracts resulted in a loss of
$2 million and therefore increased AOCL for the year ended January 28, 2012.
Derivative Holdings Designated as Non-Hedges
The Company mitigates the effect of fluctuating foreign exchange rates on the reporting of
foreign-currency denominated earnings by entering into currency option contracts. Changes in the fair
value of these foreign currency option contracts, which are designated as non-hedges, are recorded in
earnings immediately within other income. The realized gains, premiums paid and changes in the fair
market value recorded in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations were not significant for
any of the periods presented.
The Company also enters into forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge foreign-currency denominated
merchandise purchases and intercompany transactions that are not designated as hedges. Net changes in
the fair value of foreign exchange derivative financial instruments designated as non-hedges were
substantially offset by the changes in value of the underlying transactions, which were recorded in
selling, general and administrative expenses. The amounts recorded for all the periods presented were
not significant.

56

FOOT LOCKER, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
18.

Financial Instruments and Risk Management − (continued)

The Company enters into diesel fuel forward and option contracts to mitigate a portion of the Company’s
freight expense due to the variability caused by fuel surcharges imposed by our third-party freight
carriers. Changes in the fair value of these contracts are recorded in earnings immediately. The effect was
not significant for any of the periods presented.
Fair Value of Derivative Contracts
The following represents the fair value of the Company’s derivative contracts. Many of the Company’s
agreements allow for a netting arrangement. The following is presented on a gross basis, by type
of contract:
(in millions)

Balance Sheet Caption

Hedging Instruments:
Forward foreign exchange contracts
Forward foreign exchange contracts

2011

Current asset
Current liability

$ —
$ 2

2010

$
$

2
—

Notional Values and Foreign Currency Exchange Rates
The table below presents the notional amounts for all outstanding derivatives and the weighted-average
exchange rates of foreign exchange forward contracts at January 28, 2012:
Contract Value
(U.S. in millions)

Inventory
Buy €/Sell British £
Buy US/Sell €
Intercompany
Buy €/Sell British £
Buy British £/Sell €
Buy US/Sell CAD$
Diesel fuel forwards

Weighted-Average
Exchange Rate

$

65
2

.8563
.7798

$

20
9
3

.8471
1.2014
1.0194

$

7

—

Business Risk
The retailing business is highly competitive. Price, quality, selection of merchandise, reputation, store
location, advertising, and customer service are important competitive factors in the Company’s business.
The Company operates in 23 countries and purchased approximately 82 percent of its merchandise in
2011 from its top 5 vendors. In 2011, the Company purchased approximately 61 percent of its athletic
merchandise from one major vendor, Nike, Inc. (‘‘Nike’’), and approximately 17 percent from another
major vendor. Each of our operating divisions is highly dependent on Nike; they individually purchase
45 to 77 percent of their merchandise from Nike. The Company generally considers all vendor relations to
be satisfactory.
Included in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet at January 28, 2012, are the net assets of the
Company’s European operations, which total $794 million and which are located in 19 countries, 11 of
which have adopted the euro as their functional currency.
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19.

Fair Value Measurements

The following table provides a summary of the recognized assets and liabilities that are measured at fair
value on a recurring basis:
As of January 28, 2012

Assets
Auction rate security
Forward foreign
exchange
contracts
Total Assets
Liabilities
Forward foreign
exchange
contracts
Total Liabilities

As of January 29, 2011

Level 1

Level 2

(in millions)
Level 3
Level 1

$

—

$

5

$

—

$

—

$

5

$

—

$

—
—

$

—
5

$

—
—

$

—
—

$

2
7

$

—
—

$

—
—

$

2
2

$

—
—

$

—
—

$

—
—

$

—
—

Level 2

Level 3

The Company’s derivative financial instruments are valued using observable market-based inputs to
industry valuation models. These valuation models require a variety of inputs, including contractual terms,
market prices, yield curves, and measures of volatility obtained from various market sources.
At January 28, 2012 and January 29, 2011, the Company held a preferred stock auction rate security with a
face value of $7 million. The security earns and pays interest based on the stated terms. The Company
classifies the security as long-term available-for-sale and reports the security at fair value as a component
of other assets on the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets. The Company evaluates the security for
other-than-temporary impairments at each reporting period. The security is considered temporarily
impaired at January 28, 2012 with a cumulative unrealized loss of $2 million reflected in accumulated
other comprehensive loss in the Company’s Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Loss. The Company
has the intent and the ability to hold the security.
The following table provides a summary of recognized assets that are measured at fair value on a
non-recurring basis. See Note 3, Impairment and Other Charges, for further discussion and
additional disclosures.
Loss
Recognized

(in millions)

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Year ended January 28, 2012:
Intangible assets

$

—

$

—

$

10

$

5

Year ended January 29, 2011:
Intangible assets

$

—

$

—

$

15

$

10

The carrying value and estimated fair value of long-term debt were as follows:
2011

Carrying Value
Fair Value

2010
(in millions)

$135
$140

$137
$139

The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments, and other current receivables
and payables approximate their fair value.
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Retirement Plans and Other Benefits

Pension and Other Postretirement Plans
The Company has defined benefit pension plans covering certain of its North American employees, which
are funded in accordance with the provisions of the laws where the plans are in effect. In addition to
providing pension benefits, the Company sponsors postretirement medical and life insurance plans, which
are available to most of its retired U.S. employees. These plans are contributory and are not funded. The
measurement date of the assets and liabilities is the last day of the fiscal year. The following tables set forth
the plans’ changes in benefit obligations and plan assets, funded status, and amounts recognized in the
Consolidated Balance Sheets, measured at January 28, 2012 and January 29, 2011:
Pension
Benefits
2011

Postretirement
Benefits
2010
2011
2010
(in millions)

Change in benefit obligation
Benefit obligation at beginning of year
Service cost
Interest cost
Plan participants’ contributions
Actuarial loss
Foreign currency translation adjustments
Plan amendment
Benefits paid
Benefit obligation at end of year

$669
12
32
—
47
(1)
—
(55)
$704

$654
13
33
—
24
6
—
(61)
$669

$ 12
—
1
3
2
—
1
(4)
$ 15

$ 13
—
—
3
—
—
—
(4)
$ 12

Change in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year
Actual return on plan assets
Employer contributions
Foreign currency translation adjustments
Benefits paid
Fair value of plan assets at end of year
Funded status

$601
63
31
(1)
(55)
$639
$ (65)

$550
70
36
6
(61)
$601
$ (68)

$(15)

$(12)

$

8
(3)
(70)
$ (65)

$

2
(3)
(67)
$ (68)

$ —
(1)
(14)
$(15)

$ —
(1)
(11)
$(12)

$446
1
$447

$438
1
$439

$(21)
—
$(21)

$(28)
(2)
$(30)

Amounts recognized on the Balance Sheet:
Other assets
Accrued and other liabilities
Other liabilities
Amounts recognized in accumulated other
comprehensive loss, pre-tax:
Net loss (gain)
Prior service cost (credit)
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As of January 28, 2012 and January 29, 2011, the Canadian qualified pension plan’s assets exceeded its
accumulated benefit obligation. Information for pension plans with an accumulated benefit obligation in
excess of plan assets is as follows:
2011

2010
(in millions)

Projected benefit obligation
Accumulated benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets

$619
619
546

$581
581
511

The following tables set forth the changes in accumulated other comprehensive loss (pre-tax) at
January 28, 2012:
Pension
Benefits

Net actuarial loss (gain) at beginning of year
Amortization of net (loss) gain
Loss arising during the year
Foreign currency translation adjustments
Net actuarial loss (gain) at end of year(1)
Net prior service cost (benefit) at beginning of year
Amortization of prior service cost
Loss arising during the year
Net prior service cost at end of year(1)
Total amount recognized
(1)

Postretirement
Benefits
(in millions)

$438
(15)
24
(1)
$446
$ 1
—
—
$ 1
$447

$(28)
5
2
—
$(21)
$ (2)
1
1
$ —
$(21)

The amounts in accumulated other comprehensive loss that are expected to be recognized as components of net periodic
benefit cost (income) during the next year are approximately $16 million and $(4) million related to the pension and
postretirement plans, respectively. Additionally, $(1) million is expected to be recognized representing postretirement benefits
prior-service costs.

The following weighted-average assumptions were used to determine the benefit obligations under
the plans:

Discount rate
Rate of compensation increase

Pension Benefits
2011
2010

Postretirement Benefits
2011
2010

4.16%
3.69%

4.00%

4.98%
3.68%
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Pension expense is actuarially calculated annually based on data available at the beginning of each year.
The expected return on plan assets is determined by multiplying the expected long-term rate of return on
assets by the market-related value of plan assets for the U.S. qualified pension plan and market value for
the Canadian qualified pension plan. The market-related value of plan assets is a calculated value that
recognizes investment gains and losses in fair value related to equities over three or five years, depending
on which computation results in a market-related value closer to market value. Market-related value for
the U.S. qualified plan was $476 million and $493 million for 2011 and 2010, respectively. Assumptions
used in the calculation of net benefit cost include the discount rate selected and disclosed at the end of the
previous year as well as other assumptions detailed in the table below:
2011

Discount rate
Rate of
compensation
increase
Expected long-term
rate of return on
assets

Pension Benefits
2010

2009

2011

4.60%

4.99%

5.25%

6.22%

3.69%

3.68%

3.67%

6.59%

7.22%

7.63%

Postretirement Benefits
2010
2009

4.90%

6.20%

The expected long-term rate of return on invested plan assets is based on the plans’ weighted-average
target asset allocation, as well as historical and future expected performance of those assets. The target
asset allocation is selected to obtain an investment return that is sufficient to cover the expected benefit
payments and to reduce future contributions by the Company.
The components of net benefit expense (income) are:
2011

Service cost
Interest cost
Expected return on
plan assets
Amortization of
prior service cost
Amortization of net
loss (gain)
Net benefit expense
(income)

$

$

12
32

Pension Benefits
2010

$

13
33

2009

$

2011
(in millions)

11
36

Postretirement Benefits
2010
2009

$ —
1

$ —
—

$ —
1

(40)

(40)

(43)

—

—

—

—

—

1

(1)

—

—

15

17

13

(5)

(6)

(7)

19

$

23

$

18

$

(5)

$

(6)

$

(6)

Beginning with 2001, new retirees were charged the expected full cost of the medical plan and
then-existing retirees will incur 100 percent of the expected future increases in medical plan costs. Any
changes in the health care cost trend rates assumed would not affect the accumulated benefit obligation or
net benefit income, since retirees will incur 100 percent of such expected future increase.
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In addition, the Company maintains a Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (‘‘SERP’’), which is an
unfunded plan that includes provisions for the continuation of medical and dental insurance benefits to
certain executive officers and certain other key employees of the Company (‘‘SERP Medical Plan’’). The
SERP Medical Plan’s accumulated projected benefit obligation at January 28, 2012 was approximately
$9 million. The assumed health care cost trend rates related to the measurement of the Company’s SERP
Medical Plan obligations for the year ended January 28, 2012 are as follows:
Medical

Initial cost trend rate
Ultimate cost trend rate
Year that the ultimate cost trend rate is reached

8.00%
5.00%
2018

Dental

5.50%
5.00%
2013

A one percentage-point change in the assumed health care cost trend rates would have the
following effects:
1% Increase
1% (Decrease)
(in millions)

Effect on total service and interest cost components
Effect on accumulated postretirement benefit obligation

$

—
2

$

—
(2)

Plan Assets
During 2011, the target composition of the Company’s U.S. plan assets was changed to represent
45 percent equity and 55 percent fixed-income securities. The Company may alter the targets from time to
time depending on market conditions and the funding requirements of the pension plan. This current asset
allocation will limit volatility with regard to the funded status of the plan, but will result in higher pension
expense due to the lower long-term rate of return associated with fixed-income securities. Due to market
conditions and other factors, actual asset allocations may vary from the target allocation outlined above.
The Company believes that plan assets are invested in a prudent manner with an objective of providing a
total return that, over the long term, provides sufficient assets to fund benefit obligations, taking into
account the Company’s expected contributions and the level of risk deemed appropriate. The Company’s
investment strategy seeks to utilize asset classes with differing rates of return, volatility, and correlation in
order to reduce risk by providing diversification relative to equities. Diversification within asset classes is
also utilized to ensure that there are no significant concentrations of risk in plan assets and to reduce the
effect that the return on any single investment may have on the entire portfolio.
The target composition of the Company’s Canadian plan assets is 95 percent debt securities and 5 percent
equity. The Company believes that plan assets are invested in a prudent manner with the same overall
objective and investment strategy as noted above for the U.S. pension plan. The bond portfolio is
comprised of government and corporate bonds chosen to match the duration of the pension plan’s benefit
payment obligations. This current asset allocation will limit future volatility with regard to the funded
status of the plan. This allocation has resulted in higher pension expense due to the lower long-term rate of
return associated with fixed-income securities.
Valuation of Investments
Significant portions of plan assets are invested in commingled trust funds. These funds are valued at the
net asset value of units held by the plan at year end. Stocks traded on U.S. security exchanges are valued at
closing market prices on the measurement date.
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Investments in real estate are carried at their estimated fair value based on information supplied by
independent appraisers whereby each property is independently appraised and adjusted accordingly at
least once within a five-year period. The Company’s management reviews the fair value of each property
during the intervening years to determine whether an impairment has occurred since receiving the latest
independent appraisal and that no change is required to the fair value.
The fair values of the Company’s U.S. pension plan assets at January 28, 2012 and January 29, 2011 are
as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents

(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)

—

$ 13

$

120
42
72
—

—
—
—
—

120
42
72
11

137
40
70
7

—

221

—

221

214

—

58

—

58

29

—
—
11

—
1
$527

8
—
8

8
1
$546

9
1
$511

$

—

$ 13

—
—
—
11

Fixed-income securities:
Long duration corporate and
government bonds(4)
Intermediate duration corporate
and government bonds(5)

*
(1)

2010
Total*

Level 2

Equity securities:
U.S. large-cap(1)
U.S. mid-cap(1)
International(2)
Corporate stock(3)

Other types of investments:
Real estate
Insurance contracts
Total assets at fair value

2011
Total

Level 1

$

Level 3
(in millions)

$

$

4

Each category of plan assets is classified within the same level of the fair value hierarchy for 2011 and 2010.
These categories consist of various managed funds that invest primarily in common stocks, as well as other equity securities
and a combination of other funds.
This category comprises two managed funds that invest primarily in international common stocks, as well as other equity
securities and a combination of other funds.
This category consists of the Company’s common stock.
This category consists of various fixed-income funds that invest primarily in long-term bonds, as well as a combination of other
funds, that together are designed to exceed the performance of related long-term market indices.
This category consists of a fixed-income fund that invests primarily in intermediate duration bonds, as well as a combination of
other funds, that together are designed to track the performance of the Barclays Capital U.S. Intermediate Credit Index.

The following table is a reconciliation of the fair value of the U.S. pension plan’s real estate investments
classified as Level 3:
(in millions)

Level 3

Balance at January 30, 2010
Changes during the year
Balance at January 29, 2011
Unrealized loss on appraised value of real estate
Balance at January 28, 2012

$
$
$
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The fair values of the Company’s Canadian pension plan assets at January 28, 2012 and January 29, 2011
are as follows:

Cash and cash
equivalents

Level 1

Level 2

$

$

Equity securities:
Canadian and
International(1)
Debt securities:
Cash matched
bonds(2)
Total assets at fair
value
*
(1)
(2)

$

—

Level 3
(in millions)

5

$

—

2011
Total

$

5

2010
Total*

$

1

—

5

—

5

6

—

83

—

83

83

—

$

93

$

—

$

93

$

90

Each category of plan assets is classified within the same level of the fair value hierarchy for 2011 and 2010.
In 2011, this category comprises one mutual fund that invests primarily in a diverse portfolio of Canadian securities. In 2010,
this category comprised two mutual funds that invested primarily in a diverse portfolio of Canadian and international
equity securities.
This category consists of fixed-income securities, including strips and coupons, issued or guaranteed by the Government of
Canada, provinces or municipalities of Canada including their agencies and crown corporations, as well as other governmental
bonds and corporate bonds.

No Level 3 assets were held by the Canadian pension plan during 2011.
During 2011 the Company made contributions of $25 million and $3 million to its U.S. and Canadian plans,
respectively. The Company continuously evaluates the amount and timing of any future contributions.
Additional contributions will depend on the plan asset performance and other factors.
Estimated future benefit payments for each of the next five years and the five years thereafter are
as follows:
Pension
Benefits

2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017 − 2021

$ 75
59
58
56
54
249

Postretirement
Benefits
(in millions)

$

1
1
1
1
1
5

In February 2007, the Company and its U.S. pension plan, the Foot Locker Retirement Plan, were named as
defendants in a class action in federal court in New York. The Complaint alleged that the Company’s
pension plan violated the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, including, without limitation,
its age discrimination and notice provisions, as a result of the Company’s conversion of its defined benefit
plan to a defined benefit pension plan with a cash balance feature in 1996. The Company is defending the
action vigorously. The Company is currently unable to make an estimate of loss or range of loss.
Management does not believe that the outcome of any such proceedings would have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position, liquidity, or results of operations, taken as a whole.
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Savings Plans
The Company has two qualified savings plans, a 401(k) Plan that is available to employees whose primary
place of employment is the U.S., and an 1165(e) Plan that is available to employees whose primary place of
employment is in Puerto Rico. Both plans require that the employees have attained at least the age of
twenty-one and have completed one year of service consisting of at least 1,000 hours. As of
January 1, 2012, the savings plans allow eligible employees to contribute up to 40 percent and $10,000, for
the U.S. and Puerto Rico plans, respectively, of their compensation on a pre-tax basis. The Company
matches 25 percent of the first 4 percent of the employees’ contributions with Company stock and such
matching Company contributions are vested incrementally over 5 years for both plans. The charge to
operations for the Company’s matching contribution was $2 million in each of 2011 and 2010 and $3
million in 2009.
21.

Share-Based Compensation

Stock Awards
Under the Company’s 2007 Stock Incentive Plan (the ‘‘2007 Stock Plan’’), stock options, restricted stock,
restricted stock units, stock appreciation rights (SARs), or other stock-based awards may be granted to
officers and other employees of the Company, including its subsidiaries and operating divisions
worldwide. Nonemployee directors are also eligible to receive awards under this plan. Options for
employees become exercisable in substantially equal annual installments over a three-year period,
beginning with the first anniversary of the date of grant of the option, unless a shorter or longer duration is
established at the time of the option grant. Options for nonemployee directors become exercisable
one year from the date of grant. On May 19, 2010, the 2007 Stock Plan was amended to increase the
maximum number of shares of stock reserved for all awards to 12,000,000. The options terminate up to
ten years from the date of grant.
Employees Stock Purchase Plan
Under the Company’s 2003 Employees Stock Purchase Plan (the ‘‘ESPP’’), participating employees are able
to contribute up to 10 percent of their annual compensation, not to exceed $25,000 in any plan year,
through payroll deductions to acquire shares of the Company’s common stock at 85 percent of the lower
market price on one of two specified dates in each plan year. Under the ESPP, 3,000,000 shares of common
stock are authorized for purchase beginning June 2005. Of the 3,000,000 shares of common stock
authorized for purchase under this plan, 919 participating employees purchased 336,116 shares in 2011,
and 764 participating employees purchased 278,212 shares in 2010. To date, a total of 1,278,045 shares
have been purchased under this plan.
Share-Based Compensation Expense
Total compensation expense related to the Company’s share-based compensation plans was $18 million,
$13 million, and $12 million for 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively. The total related tax benefit realized
was $5 million, $3 million for 2011 and 2010, respectively and was not significant for 2009.
Valuation Model and Assumptions
The Company uses a Black-Scholes option-pricing model to estimate the fair value of share-based awards.
The Black-Scholes option-pricing model incorporates various and highly subjective assumptions, including
expected term and expected volatility.
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The Company estimates the expected term of share-based awards granted using the Company’s historical
exercise and post-vesting employment termination patterns, which it believes are representative of future
behavior. The expected term for the employee stock purchase plan valuation is based on the length of each
purchase period as measured at the beginning of the offering period, which is one year. The Company
estimates the expected volatility of its common stock at the grant date using a weighted-average of the
Company’s historical volatility and implied volatility from traded options on the Company’s common stock.
The Company believes that the combination of historical volatility and implied volatility provides a better
estimate of future stock price volatility. The risk-free interest rate assumption is determined using the
Federal Reserve nominal rates for U.S. Treasury zero-coupon bonds with maturities similar to those of the
expected term of the award being valued. The expected dividend yield is derived from the Company’s
historical experience. The Company records stock-based compensation expense only for those awards
expected to vest using an estimated forfeiture rate based on its historical pre-vesting forfeiture data. The
Company estimates pre-vesting option forfeitures at the time of grant and periodically revises those
estimates in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates.
The following table shows the Company’s assumptions used to compute the share-based
compensation expense:
2011

Weighted-average
risk free rate of
interest
Expected volatility
Weighted-average
expected award
life- in years
Dividend yield
Weighted-average
fair value

Stock Option Plans
2010

2009

2011

Stock Purchase Plan
2010

2009

2.07%
45%

2.34%
45%

1.93%
53%

0.31%
37%

0.85%
39%

1.74%
39%

5.0
3.5%

5.0
4.0%

4.6
6.0%

1.0
3.4%

1.0
4.8%

1.0
4.4%

$5.86

$4.47

$2.89

$3.91

$2.54

$4.17

Compensation expense related to the Company’s stock options and employee stock purchase plan was
$8 million, $5 million, and $4 million for 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively. As of January 28, 2012, there
was $5 million of total unrecognized compensation cost, net of estimated forfeitures, related to nonvested
stock options, which is expected to be recognized over a remaining weighted-average period of
approximately 1 year.
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The information set forth in the following table covers options granted under the Company’s stock
option plans:
2011

Options outstanding
at beginning of
year
Granted
Exercised
Expired or cancelled
Options outstanding
at end of year
Options exercisable
at end of year
Options available for
future grant at
end of year

2010

2009

Number of
Shares

WeightedAverage
Exercise
Price

7,220
1,612
(1,454)
(151)

$17.17
$19.13
$13.02
$17.38

7,002
1,311
(942)
(151)

$16.88
$15.10
$11.65
$20.41

6,080
1,521
(181)
(418)

$18.64
$10.02
$ 8.76
$21.03

7,227

$18.44

7,220

$17.17

7,002

$16.88

4,598

$19.35

5,088

$18.81

5,084

$18.85

7,155

WeightedAverage
Number of
Exercise
Number of
Shares
Price
Shares
(in thousands, except prices per share)

10,339

WeightedAverage
Exercise
Price

2,214

The total intrinsic value of options exercised (the difference between the market price of the Company’s
common stock on the exercise date and the price paid by the optionee to exercise the option) is
presented below:
2011

Exercised

$

15

2010
(in millions)

$

5

2009

$

—

The aggregate intrinsic value for stock options outstanding and for stock options exercisable (the
difference between the Company’s closing stock price on the last trading day of the period and the exercise
price of the options, multiplied by the number of in-the-money stock options) is presented below:
2011

Outstanding
Outstanding and Exercisable

$ 59
$ 33

2010
(in millions)

$ 23
$ 13

2009

$ 2
$ 1

The Company received $18 million in cash from option exercises for the year ended January 28, 2012.
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The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding and exercisable at
January 28, 2012:

Range of Exercise Prices

$ 9.85 to $15.10
$15.74 to $21.48
$21.80 to $25.39
$25.46 to $28.16

Number
Outstanding

2,840
1,850
1,893
644
7,227

Options Outstanding
Options Exercisable
WeightedAverage
WeightedWeightedRemaining
Average
Average
Contractual
Exercise
Number
Exercise
Life
Price
Exercisable
Price
(in thousands, except prices per share and contractual life)

6.92
7.46
3.48
2.45
5.76

$12.38
$18.53
$24.28
$27.68
$18.44

1,732
404
1,818
644
4,598

$11.55
$17.37
$24.26
$27.68
$19.35

Changes in the Company’s nonvested options at January 28, 2012 are summarized as follows:
WeightedAverage
Grant Date
Number of
Fair Value
Shares
per share
(in thousands, except
prices per share)

Nonvested at January 29, 2011
Granted
Vested
Expired or cancelled
Nonvested at January 28, 2012

2,132
1,612
(964)
(151)
2,629

$13.23
19.13
12.60
17.38
$16.84

Restricted Stock and Units
Restricted shares of the Company’s common stock and restricted stock units may be awarded to certain
officers and key employees of the Company. The Company also issues restricted stock units to its
non-employee directors. Each restricted stock unit represents the right to receive one share of the
Company’s common stock provided that the vesting conditions are satisfied. In 2011, 2010, and 2009,
there were 1,098,177, 653,535, and 227,000 restricted stock units outstanding, respectively.
Compensation expense is recognized using the fair market value at the date of grant and is amortized over
the vesting period, provided the recipient continues to be employed by the Company.
Generally, awards fully vest after the passage of time, typically three years. However, restricted stock unit
grants made after May 19, 2010 in connection with the Company’s long-term incentive program vest after
the attainment of certain performance metrics and the passage of time. Restricted stock is considered
outstanding at the time of grant and the holders have voting rights. Dividends are paid to holders of
restricted stock that vest with the passage of time; for performance-based restricted stock granted after
May 19, 2010, dividends will be accumulated and paid after the performance criteria are met.
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The Company recorded compensation expense related to restricted shares, net of estimated forfeitures, of
$10 million, $8 million, and $8 million for 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively. At January 28, 2012, there
was $14 million of total unrecognized compensation cost net of estimated forfeitures, related to nonvested
restricted stock awards. Restricted share and unit activity is summarized as follows:
2011

Outstanding at beginning of year
Granted
Vested
Cancelled or forfeited
Outstanding at end of year
Aggregate value (in millions)
Weighted-average remaining contractual life

Number of Shares and Units
2010
2009
(in thousands)

1,759
686
(327)
(50)
2,068
$ 30
1.19 years

1,680
651
(492)
(80)
1,759
$ 20
1.44 years

844
1,115
(279)
—
1,680
$ 23
1.50 years

The weighted-average grant-date fair value per share was $20.18, $13.75, and $9.90 for 2011, 2010, and
2009, respectively. The total fair value of awards for which restrictions lapsed was $4 million, $10 million,
and $5 million for 2011, 2010, and 2009 respectively.
22.

Legal Proceedings

Legal proceedings pending against the Company or its consolidated subsidiaries consist of ordinary,
routine litigation, including administrative proceedings, incidental to the business of the Company or
businesses that have been sold or disposed of by the Company in past years. These legal proceedings
include commercial, intellectual property, customer, and labor-and-employment-related claims.
Certain of the Company’s subsidiaries are defendants in a number of lawsuits filed in state and federal
courts containing various class action allegations under federal or state wage and hour laws, including
allegations concerning unpaid overtime, meal, and rest breaks, and uniforms.
The Company is a defendant in one such case in which plaintiff alleges that the Company permitted unpaid
off-the-clock hours in violation of the Fair Labor Standards Act and state labor laws. The case, Pereira v.
Foot Locker, was filed in the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Pennsylvania in 2007. In his
complaint, in addition to unpaid wage and overtime allegations, plaintiff seeks compensatory and punitive
damages, injunctive relief, and attorneys’ fees and costs. In 2009, the Court conditionally certified a
nationwide collective action. During the course of 2010, notices were sent to approximately 81,888 current
and former employees of the Company offering them the opportunity to participate in the class action, and
approximately 5,027 have opted in.
The Company is a defendant in additional purported wage and hour class actions that assert claims similar
to those asserted in Pereira and seek similar remedies. With the exception of Hill v. Foot Locker filed in
state court in Illinois in 2011, and Cortes v. Foot Locker filed in federal court of New York, all of these
actions were consolidated by the United States Judicial Panel on Multidistrict Litigation with Pereira. The
consolidated cases are in the discovery stages of proceedings. In Hill v. Foot Locker, in May 2011, the court
granted plaintiffs’ motion for certification of an opt-out class covering certain Illinois employees only. The
Company’s motion for leave to appeal was denied. The Company is currently engaged in mediation with
plaintiff in Pereira and his counsel in an attempt to determine whether it will be possible to resolve the
consolidated cases and Hill. Meanwhile, the Company is vigorously defending them. Due to the inherent
uncertainties of such matters, including the early stages of certain matters, the Company is currently
unable to make an estimate of the range of loss.
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Management does not believe that the outcome of any such legal proceedings pending against the
Company or its consolidated subsidiaries, including the Pereira consolidated cases and Hill as described
above, would have a material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position, liquidity, or
results of operations, taken as a whole.
23.

Commitments

In connection with the sale of various businesses and assets, the Company may be obligated for certain
lease commitments transferred to third parties and pursuant to certain normal representations,
warranties, or indemnifications entered into with the purchasers of such businesses or assets. Although
the maximum potential amounts for such obligations cannot be readily determined, management believes
that the resolution of such contingencies will not have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated
financial position, liquidity, or results of operations. The Company is also operating certain stores and
making rental payments for which lease agreements are in the process of being negotiated with landlords.
Although there is no contractual commitment to make these payments, it is likely that a lease will
be executed.
The Company does not have any off-balance sheet financing, other than operating leases entered into in
the normal course of business and disclosed above, or unconsolidated special purpose entities. The
Company does not participate in transactions that generate relationships with unconsolidated entities or
financial partnerships, including variable interest entities.
24.

Quarterly Results (Unaudited)

Sales
2011
2010
Gross margin(1)
2011
2010
Operating profit(2)
2011
2010
Net income
2011
2010
Basic earnings per share:
2011
2010
Diluted earnings per share:
2011
2010
(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)

1st Q

2nd Q
3rd Q
4th Q
(in millions, except per share amounts)

Year

1,452
1,281

1,275
1,096

1,394
1,280

1,502
1,392

$5,623
$5,049

475
393

388
305

453
388

480
430

$1,796
$1,516

150
87

59
11

106
74

122
90

$ 437
$ 262

94
54

37
6

66
52

0.61
0.35

0.24
0.04

0.43
0.33

0.53
0.36

$ 1.81
$ 1.08

0.60
0.34

0.24
0.04

0.43
0.33

0.53
0.36

$ 1.80
$ 1.07

81(3)
57(3),(4)

$ 278
$ 169

Gross margin represents sales less cost of sales.
Operating profit represents income from continuing operations before income taxes, interest expense, net, and
non-operating income.
During the fourth quarters of 2011 and 2010, the Company recorded impairment charges of $5 million and $10 million,
respectively, related to its CCS tradename.
During the fourth quarter of 2010, a realized gain of $2 million was recorded related to the Reserve International Fund, a
money-market investment.
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Item 9.

Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

There were no disagreements between the Company and its independent registered public accounting
firm on matters of accounting principles or practices.
Item 9A.

Controls and Procedures

(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures.
The Company’s management performed an evaluation under the supervision and with the
participation of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer (‘‘CEO’’) and Chief Financial Officer (‘‘CFO’’),
and completed an evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company’s
disclosure controls and procedures (as that term is defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the ‘‘Exchange Act’’)) as of January 28, 2012. Based
on that evaluation, the Company’s CEO and CFO concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and
procedures were effective to ensure that information relating to the Company that is required to be
disclosed in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the SEC rules and forms, and is
accumulated and communicated to management, including the CEO and CFO, as appropriate to allow
timely decisions regarding required disclosure.
(b) Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting.
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control
over financial reporting (as that term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)). To
evaluate the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting, the Company
uses the framework in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the ‘‘COSO Framework’’). Using the COSO Framework,
the Company’s management, including the CEO and CFO, evaluated the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting and concluded that the Company’s internal control over financial reporting
was effective as of January 28, 2012. KPMG LLP, the independent registered public accounting firm
that audits the Company’s consolidated financial statements included in this annual report, has issued
an attestation report on the Company’s effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting,
which is included in Item 9A(d).
(c) Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting.
During the Company’s last fiscal quarter there were no changes in internal control over financial
reporting that materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting.
(d) Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting- the report appears on the following page.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Foot Locker, Inc.:
We have audited Foot Locker, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of January 28, 2012, based
on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Foot Locker, Inc.’s management is responsible for
maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management’s Annual Report on
Internal Control over Financial Reporting (Item 9A(b)). Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audit also included performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.
A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk
that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
In our opinion, Foot Locker, Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over
financial reporting as of January 28, 2012, based on the criteria established in Internal
Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission.
We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheets of Foot Locker, Inc. and subsidiaries as of
January 28, 2012, and January 29, 2011, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
comprehensive income, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period
ended January 28, 2012, and our report dated March 26, 2012, expressed an unqualified opinion on these
consolidated financial statements.

New York, New York
March 26, 2012
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Item 9B.

Other Information

None.

PART III
Item 10.

Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

(a) Directors of the Company
Information relative to directors of the Company is set forth under the section captioned
‘‘Proposal 1 — Election of Directors’’ in the Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.
(b) Executive Officers of the Company
Information with respect to executive officers of the Company is set forth immediately following
Item 4 in Part I.
(c) Information with respect to compliance with Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is
set forth under the section captioned ‘‘Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance’’ in
the Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.
(d) Information on our audit committee and the audit committee financial expert is contained in the
Proxy Statement under the section captioned ‘‘Committees of the Board of Directors’’ and is
incorporated herein by reference.
(e) Information about the Code of Business Conduct governing our employees, including our Chief
Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Accounting Officer, and the Board of Directors, is set
forth under the heading ‘‘Code of Business Conduct’’ under the Corporate Governance Information
section of the Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.
Item 11.

Executive Compensation

Information set forth in the Proxy Statement beginning with the section captioned ‘‘Directors
Compensation and Benefits’’ through and including the section captioned ‘‘Pension Benefits’’ is
incorporated herein by reference, and information set forth in the Proxy Statement under the heading
‘‘Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation’’ is incorporated herein by reference.
Item 12.

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related
Stockholder Matters

Information set forth in the Proxy Statement under the sections captioned ‘‘Equity Compensation Plan
Information’’ and ‘‘Beneficial Ownership of the Company’s Stock’’ is incorporated herein by reference.
Item 13.

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

Information set forth in the Proxy Statement under the section captioned ‘‘Related Person Transactions’’
and under the section captioned ‘‘Directors’ Independence’’ is incorporated herein by reference.
Item 14.

Principal Accounting Fees and Services

Information about the principal accounting fees and services is set forth under the section captioned
‘‘Audit and Non-Audit Fees’’ in the Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference. Information
about the Audit Committee’s pre-approval policies and procedures is set forth in the section captioned
‘‘Audit Committee Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures’’ in the Proxy Statement and is incorporated
herein by reference.
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PART IV
Item 15.

Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(a)(1)(a)(2) Financial Statements
The list of financial statements required by this item is set forth in Item 8. ‘‘Consolidated Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data.’’
(a)(3) and (c) Exhibits
An index of the exhibits which are required by this item and which are included or incorporated
herein by reference in this report appears on pages 76 through 79. The exhibits filed with this report
immediately follow the index.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Company
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
FOOT LOCKER, INC.
By:

Ken C. Hicks
Chairman of the Board, President and
Chief Executive Officer
Date: March 26, 2012
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below on
March 26, 2012, by the following persons on behalf of the Company and in the capacities indicated.

Ken C. Hicks
Chairman of the Board,
President and
Chief Executive Officer

Lauren B. Peters
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

/s/ GIOVANNA CIPRIANO
Giovanna Cipriano
Senior Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer

/s/ JAMES E. PRESTON
James E. Preston
Director

/s/ NICHOLAS DIPAOLO
Nicholas DiPaolo
Director

/s/ ALLEN QUESTROM
Allen Questrom
Director

/s/ ALAN D. FELDMAN
Alan D. Feldman
Director

/s/ DAVID Y. SCHWARTZ
David Y. Schwartz
Director

/s/ JAROBIN GILBERT JR.
Jarobin Gilbert Jr.
Director

/s/ CHERYL NIDO TURPIN
Cheryl Nido Turpin
Director

/s/ GUILLERMO G. MARMOL
Guillermo G. Marmol
Director

/s/ DONA D. YOUNG
Dona D. Young
Director

/s/ MATTHEW M. MCKENNA
Matthew M. McKenna
Director
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FOOT LOCKER, INC.
INDEX OF EXHIBITS REQUIRED BY ITEM 15 OF FORM 10-K
AND FURNISHED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ITEM 601 OF REGULATION S-K
Exhibit No.
in Item 601 of
Regulation S-K

3(i)(a)

3(i)(b)

3(ii)

4.1

4.2

4.3
10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

Description

Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant, as filed by the Department of State of the
State of New York on April 7, 1989 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3(i)(a) to
the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended July 26, 1997, filed by
the Registrant with the SEC on September 4, 1997 (the ‘‘July 26, 1997 Form 10-Q’’)).
Certificates of Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant, as filed by
the Department of State of the State of New York on (a) July 20, 1989, (b) July 24, 1990,
(c) July 9, 1997 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3(i)(b) to the July 26, 1997
Form 10-Q), (d) June 11, 1998 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.2(a) of the
Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Registration No. 333-62425), and
(e) November 1, 2001 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Registration
Statement on Form S-8 (Registration No. 333-74688) previously filed by the Registrant
with the SEC).
By-laws of the Registrant, as amended (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to
the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 20, 2009 filed by the Registrant
with the SEC on May 27, 2009).
The rights of holders of the Registrant’s equity securities are defined in the
Registrant’s Certificate of Incorporation, as amended (incorporated herein by reference to
(a) Exhibits 3(i)(a) and 3(i)(b) to the July 26, 1997 Form 10-Q, Exhibit 4.2(a) to the
Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Registration No. 333-62425) previously filed by the
Registrant with the SEC, and Exhibit 4.2 to the Registration Statement on Form S-8
(Registration No. 333-74688) previously filed by the Registrant with the SEC).
Indenture dated as of October 10, 1991 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1
to the Registration Statement on Form S-3 (Registration No. 33-43334) previously filed by
the Registrant with the SEC).
Form of 8-1/2% Debentures due 2022 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4 to
the Registrant’s Form 8-K dated January 16, 1992).
Foot Locker 1995 Stock Option and Award Plan (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10(p) to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
January 28, 1995 filed by the Registrant with the SEC on April 24, 1995 (the ‘‘1994
Form 10-K’’)).
Foot Locker 1998 Stock Option and Award Plan (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
January 31, 1998, filed by the Registrant with the SEC on April 21, 1998).
Amendment to the Foot Locker 1998 Stock Option and Award Plan (incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
period ended July 29, 2000, filed by the Registrant with the SEC on September 7, 2000
(the ‘‘July 29, 2000 Form 10-Q’’)).
Executive Supplemental Retirement Plan (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10(d) to the Registration Statement on Form 8-B filed by the Registrant with the
SEC on August 7, 1989 (Registration No. 1-10299) (the ‘‘8-B Registration Statement’’)).
Amendment to the Executive Supplemental Retirement Plan (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10(c)(i) to the 1994 Form 10-K).
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Exhibit No.
in Item 601 of
Regulation S-K

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11
10.12

10.13
10.14

10.15
10.16
10.17

10.18
10.19

10.20

10.21

Description

Amendment to the Executive Supplemental Retirement Plan (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10(d)(ii) to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
January 27, 1996, filed by the Registrant with the SEC on April 26, 1996 (the ‘‘1995
Form 10-K’’)).
Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, as Amended and Restated (incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 13, 2007
filed by the Registrant with the SEC on August 17, 2007).
Amendment to the Foot Locker Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on form 8-K dated May 25, 2011
filed by the Registrant with the SEC on May 27, 2011).
Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan, as amended and restated (incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 18, 2011, filed
by the Registrant with the SEC on May 24, 2011).
Annual Incentive Compensation Plan, as amended and restated (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 26, 2008 filed
by the Registrant on April 1, 2008).
Form of indemnification agreement, as amended (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10(g) to the 8-B Registration Statement).
Amendment to form of indemnification agreement (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.5 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended
May 5, 2001 filed by the Registrant with the SEC on June 13, 2001 (the ‘‘May 5, 2001
Form 10-Q’’)).
Foot Locker Directors Stock Option Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1
to the July 29, 2000 Form 10-Q).
Trust Agreement dated as of November 12, 1987 (‘‘Trust Agreement’’), between F.W.
Woolworth Co. and The Bank of New York, as amended and assumed by the Registrant
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(j) to the 8-B Registration Statement).
Amendment to Trust Agreement made as of April 11, 2001 (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the May 5, 2001 Form 10-Q).
Foot Locker Directors’ Retirement Plan, as amended (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10(k) to the 8-B Registration Statement).
Amendments to the Foot Locker Directors’ Retirement Plan (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10(c) to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
period ended October 28, 1995, filed by the Registrant with the SEC on December 11,
1995).
Employment Agreement with Ken C. Hicks dated June 25, 2009 (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the June 26, 2009 Form 8-K).
Employment Agreement with Ronald J. Halls dated June 30, 2009 (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K dated June 30, 2009 filed by
the Registrant with the SEC on July 1, 2009).
Agreement with Ronald J. Halls dated June 22, 2011 regarding his termination of
employment and retirement (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the
Current Report on Form 8-K dated June 22, 2011 filed with the SEC by the Registrant on
June 24, 2011).
Form of Senior Executive Employment Agreement (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s December 12, 2008 Form 8-K).
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Exhibit No.
in Item 601 of
Regulation S-K

10.22
10.23
10.24

10.25
10.26

10.27
10.28
10.29
10.30

10.31
10.32
10.33
10.34

10.35

10.36

10.37

10.38

10.39

Description

Form of Executive Employment Agreement (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.21 to the 2008 Form 10-K).
Foot Locker, Inc. Excess Cash Balance Plan (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.22 to the 2008 Form 10-K).
Form of Restricted Stock Agreement (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.30 to
the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended January 30, 1999 filed by
the Registrant on April 30, 1999 (the ‘‘1998 Form 10-K’’)).
Foot Locker 2002 Directors Stock Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.24
to the 2008 Form 10-K).
Foot Locker 2003 Stock Option and Award Plan (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended
August 2, 2003 filed by the Registrant with the SEC on September 15, 2003).
Automobile Expense Reimbursement Program for Senior Executives (incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 10.26 to the 2008 Form 10-K).
Executive Medical Expense Allowance Program for Senior Executives (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.27 to the 2008 Form 10-K).
Financial Planning Allowance Program for Senior Executives (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.28 to the 2008 Form 10-K).
Form of Nonstatutory Stock Option Award Agreement for Executive Officers
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.40 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended January 28, 2006 filed by the Registrant with the SEC on March 27, 2006
(the ‘‘2005 Form 10-K’’)).
Form of Incentive Stock Option Award Agreement for Executive Officers (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.41 to the 2005 Form 10-K).
Form of Nonstatutory Stock Option Award Agreement for Non-employee Directors
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the July 31, 2004 Form 10-Q).
Long-Term Disability Program for Senior Executives (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.32 to the 2008 Form 10-K).
Foot Locker 2007 Stock Incentive Plan amended and restated as of May 19, 2010
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on
Form 8-K dated May 19, 2010 filed by the Registrant with the SEC on May 25, 2010).
Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of January 27, 2012 (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
January 27, 2012 filed by the Registrant with the SEC on February 2, 2012).
Guaranty dated as of March 20, 2009 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to
the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 20, 2009 filed by the Registrant
with the SEC on March 24, 2009).
Amended and Restated Security Agreement dated as of January 27, 2012 (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
January 27, 2012 filed by the Registrant with the SEC on February 2, 2012).
Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 5, 2010 filed
by the Registrant with the SEC on November 12, 2010).
Bonus Waiver Letter for 2009 signed by Ken C. Hicks (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 23, 2010 filed by
the Registrant with the SEC on March 29, 2010).
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Exhibit No.
in Item 601 of
Regulation S-K

12
21
23
31.1
31.2
32
101

*

Description

Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges.*
Subsidiaries of the Registrant.*
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.*
Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002.*
Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002.*
Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.*
The following materials from Foot Locker, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended January 28, 2012, formatted in XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Language)
and furnished electronically herewith: (i) the Consolidated Statements of Operations,
(ii) the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income, (iii) the Consolidated Balance
Sheets, (iv) the Consolidated Statement of Shareholder’s Equity, (v) the Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows, and (vi) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Exhibits filed with this Form 10-K
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Exhibit 12

FOOT LOCKER, INC.
COMPUTATION OF RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES
(Unaudited)
($ in millions)

NET EARNINGS
Income (loss) from continuing
operations
Income tax expense (benefit)
Interest expense, excluding
capitalized interest
Portion of rents deemed
representative of the interest
factor (1/3)
FIXED CHARGES
Gross interest expense
Portion of rents deemed
representative of the interest
factor (1/3)
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED
CHARGES

Fiscal Year Ended
Jan. 30,
2010

Jan. 28,
2012

Jan. 29,
2011

Jan. 31,
2009

Feb. 2,
2008

$278
157

$169
88

$ 47
26

$ (79)
(21)

$ 43
(93)

13

14

13

16

21

218
$666

213
$484

217
$303

225
$141

224
$195

$ 13

$ 14

$ 13

$ 16

$ 21

218
$231

213
$227

217
$230

225
$241

224
$245

2.9

2.1

1.3

0.6

0.8

Exhibit 21
FOOT LOCKER, INC. SUBSIDIARIES(1)
The following is a list of subsidiaries of Foot Locker, Inc. as of January 28, 2012, omitting some
subsidiaries, which, considered in the aggregate, would not constitute a significant subsidiary.
Name

State or Other
Jurisdiction of Incorporation

Footlocker.com, Inc.
Eastbay, Inc.
FLE CV Management, Inc.
FLE C.V.
FLE Holdings, BV

Delaware
Wisconsin
Delaware
Netherlands
Netherlands

FL Europe Holdings, Inc.
Foot Locker Austria GmbH
Foot Locker Belgium B.V.B.A.
Foot Locker Europe B.V.
FLE Logistics B.V.
Foot Locker France S.A.S.

Delaware
Austria
Belgium
Netherlands
Netherlands
France

Foot Locker Italy S.r.l.
Foot Locker Netherlands B.V.

Italy
Netherlands

Foot Locker Germany Holdings GmbH
Foot Locker Germany GmbH & Co. KG
Foot Locker ETVE, Inc.
Foot Locker Europe Holdings, S.L.
Foot Locker Spain S.L.

Germany
Germany
Delaware
Spain
Spain

Foot Locker Australia, Inc.
Foot Locker New Zealand, Inc.
Freedom Sportsline Limited

Delaware
Delaware
United Kingdom

Team Edition Apparel, Inc.
Foot Locker Specialty, Inc.
Foot Locker Retail, Inc.

Florida
New York
New York

(1)

Each subsidiary company is 100% owned, directly or indirectly, by Foot Locker, Inc. All subsidiaries are consolidated with
Foot Locker, Inc. for accounting and financial reporting purposes.

FOOT LOCKER, INC. SUBSIDIARIES(1)
Name

State or Other
Jurisdiction of Incorporation

Foot Locker Operations LLC
Foot Locker Stores, Inc.
Foot Locker Corporate Services, Inc.
Robby’s Sporting Goods, Inc.

Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Florida

Foot Locker Holdings, Inc.
FL Canada Holdings, Inc.
Foot Locker Sourcing, Inc.
Foot Locker Artigos desportivos e de tempos livres, Lda.
Foot Locker Greece Athletic Goods Ltd.
Foot Locker Suisse S.A.
Foot Locker Scandinavia B.V.

New York
Delaware
Delaware
Portugal
Greece
Switzerland
Netherlands

Foot Locker Hungary Kft
FL Corporate NY, LLC

Hungary
Delaware

FL France Holdings SAS
FL Retail NY, LLC
FL Specialty NY, LLC
Foot Locker Retail Ireland Limited
FL Finance (Europe) Limited

France
Delaware
Delaware
Ireland
Ireland

FL Retail Operations LLC
FL Specialty Operations LLC
FL Finance Europe (US) Limited

New York
New York
Ireland

FLE Franchising Limited
Foot Locker Asia, Inc.
Foot Locker Canada Co.
Foot Locker Canada Holdings LP

Ireland
Delaware
Canada
Canada

FL Canada Holdings ULC
CCS Direct LLC
FLE Management B.V.
Foot Locker Istanbul Sport Giyim Sanayi ve Ticaret LS

Canada
Wisconsin
Netherlands
Turkey

FL ETVE LLC
Foot Locker Spain C.V.
Foot Locker Denmark B.V.

Delaware
Netherlands
Netherlands

(1)

Each subsidiary company is 100% owned, directly or indirectly, by Foot Locker, Inc. All subsidiaries are consolidated with Foot
Locker, Inc. for accounting and financial reporting purposes.

Exhibit 23
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
The Board of Directors of
Foot Locker, Inc.:
We consent to the incorporation by reference in the following registration statements of Foot Locker, Inc.
and subsidiaries of our reports dated March 26, 2012, with respect to the consolidated balance sheets of
Foot Locker, Inc. as of January 28, 2012 and January 29, 2011, and the related statements of operations,
comprehensive income, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period
ended January 28, 2012, and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of
January 28, 2012, which reports appear in the January 28, 2012 annual report on Form 10-K of Foot
Locker, Inc. and subsidiaries.
Form S-8 No. 33-10783
Form S-8 No. 33-91888
Form S-8 No. 33-91886
Form S-8 No. 33-97832
Form S-8 No. 333-07215
Form S-8 No. 333-21131
Form S-8 No. 333-62425
Form S-8 No. 333-33120
Form S-8 No. 333-41056
Form S-8 No. 333-41058
Form S-8 No. 333-74688
Form S-8 No. 333-99829
Form S-8 No. 333-111222
Form S-8 No. 333-121515
Form S-8 No. 333-144044
Form S-8 No. 333-149803
Form S-3 No. 33-43334
Form S-3 No. 33-86300
Form S-3 No. 333-64930
Form S-8 No. 333-167066
Form S-8 No. 333-171523

New York, New York
March 26, 2012

Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Ken C. Hicks, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Foot Locker, Inc. (the ‘‘Registrant’’);

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit
to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under
which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows of the Registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.

The Registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and
internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))
for the Registrant and have:

5.

a)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to
the Registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b)

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c)

Evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented
in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures,
as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d)

Disclosed in this report any change in the Registrant’s internal control over financial reporting
that occurred during the Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the Registrant’s fourth fiscal
quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the Registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The Registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation
of internal control over financial reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and the Audit Committee of
the Registrant’s Board of Directors:
a)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Registrant’s ability to
record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b)

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the Registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

March 26, 2012

Principal Executive Officer

Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Lauren B. Peters, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Foot Locker, Inc. (the ‘‘Registrant’’);

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit
to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under
which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows of the Registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.

The Registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and
internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))
for the Registrant and have:

5.

a)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to
the Registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b)

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c)

Evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented
in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures,
as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d)

Disclosed in this report any change in the Registrant’s internal control over financial reporting
that occurred during the Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the Registrant’s fourth fiscal
quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the Registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The Registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation
of internal control over financial reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and the Audit Committee of
the Registrant’s Board of Directors:
a)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Registrant’s ability to
record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b)

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the Registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

March 26, 2012

Principal Financial Officer

Exhibit 32

FOOT LOCKER, INC.
Certification Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350
As Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Foot Locker, Inc. (the ‘‘Registrant’’) for the period
ended January 28, 2012, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the
‘‘Report’’), Ken C. Hicks as Chief Executive Officer of the Registrant and Lauren B. Peters as Chief Financial
Officer of the Registrant, each hereby certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934; and
(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Registrant.
Dated: March 26, 2012

Ken C. Hicks
Chief Executive Officer

Lauren B. Peters
Chief Financial Officer
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Ken C. Hicks

This report contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the federal securi es laws. Other than statements of historical facts, all statements which address
ac vi es, events, or developments that the Company an cipates will or may occur in the future, including, but not limited to, such things as future capital expenditures,
expansion, strategic plans, financial objec ves, dividend payments, stock repurchases, growth of the Company’s business and opera ons, including future cash flows,
revenues, and earnings, and other such ma ers, are forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are based on many assump ons and factors which are
detailed in the Company’s filings with the Securi es and Exchange Commission, including the eﬀects of currency fluctua ons, customer demand, fashion trends, compe ve
market forces, uncertain es related to the eﬀect of compe ve products and pricing, customer acceptance of the Company’s merchandise mix and retail loca ons, the
Company’s reliance on a few key vendors for a majority of its merchandise purchases (including a significant por on from one key vendor), pandemics and similar major
health concerns, unseasonable weather, further deteriora on of global financial markets, economic condi ons worldwide, further deteriora on of business and economic
condi ons, any changes in business, poli cal and economic condi ons due to the threat of future terrorist ac vi es in the United States or in other parts of the world and
related U.S. military ac on overseas, the ability of the Company to execute its business and strategic plans eﬀec vely with regard to each of its business units, and risks
associated with global product sourcing, including poli cal instability, changes in import regula ons, and disrup ons to transporta on services and distribu on. Any changes
in such assump ons or factors could produce significantly diﬀerent results. The Company undertakes no obliga on to update forward-looking statements, whether as a result
of new informa on, future events, or otherwise.
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COR PORATE INFORM ATION
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and corporate governance documents.

www.bnymellon.com/shareowner/equityaccess

E-mail: shrrelations@bnymellon.com
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P.O. Box 358015
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KPMG LLP
345 Park Avenue
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(212) 758-9700

Foot Locker, Footaction, Lady Foot Locker,
Kids Foot Locker, Champs Sports, Eastbay,
Team Edition, CCS and Run by Foot Locker
service marks and trademarks are owned by
Foot Locker, Inc. or its afﬁliates.

Dividend Reinvestment

Investor Information

Dividends on Foot Locker, Inc. common
stock may be reinvested through
participation in the Dividend Reinvestment
Program. Participating shareowners may
also make optional cash purchases of
Foot Locker, Inc. common stock.

Investor inquiries should be directed to the
Investor Relations Department at
(212) 720-4600.
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